
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
City of Port Orchard City Council  

Regular Meeting Agenda 
July 9, 2024 

6:30 p.m. 
 

Due to construction at City Hall, and pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW, the City Council is 
conducting its public meeting in a hybrid format with options for in-person attendance on the 2nd floor of City Hall, or remote 
viewing and participation via Zoom (link below). The meeting is streamed live on the City’s YouTube channel, click here. 
 

Remote access REMOTE ONLY 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84121324120 

Zoom Meeting ID: 841 2132 4120 
Zoom Call-In: 1 253 215 8782 

 
 

Guiding Principles 
• Are we raising the bar in all of our actions? 
• Are we honoring the past, but not living in the past? 
• Are we building positive connections with our community and outside partners? 
• Is the decision-making process building a diverse, equitable, and inclusive community? 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS  

(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Council on any topic. Comments are limited to 3 minutes per speaker. 
Please approach the podium or raise your Zoom hand if viewing remotely and wait to be recognized by the Mayor. Then, 
state your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely by Zoom via telephone, enter *9 from your keypad to 
raise your hand.) 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
(Items listed are to be considered routine in nature and are grouped together in a single motion. A Councilmember may  
remove an item for separate consideration upon request. In the event of such request, the item is placed under Business 
Items.) 
A. Approval of Vouchers and Electronic Payments 
B. Approval of Payroll and Direct Deposits 
C. Approval of the June 11, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 
 

5. PRESENTATION 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING 
(Accepting public testimony from citizens limited to the specific item listed) 

 

Contact us: 
Phone (360) 876-4407 
cityhall@portorchardwa.gov 
www.portorchardwa.gov 

 

Meeting Location: 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCFYqMXqWf7FtGETBtzFfFXg/videos?view=0&sort=p
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84121324120
mailto:cityhall@portorchardwa.gov
http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


     
July 9, 2024, Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 2 of 3 

7. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC 13.06.100 Pertaining to Stormwater Rate 

Implementation (Ryan) Page 10 
B. Adoption of a Resolution Approving WA AGO Settlement with Kroger as Part of Ongoing Opioid 

Litigation to Combat Opioid Crisis (Archer) Page 16 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Purchase of Equipment for the Equipment Rental Revolving 

Fund 500 (M. Brown) Page 69 
 

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 
 

9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 
10. REPORT OF MAYOR 
 
11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
12. CITIZEN COMMENTS (This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Council on any topic. Comments are limited 
to 3 minutes per speaker. Please approach the podium or raise your Zoom hand if viewing remotely and wait to be recognized by 
the Mayor. Then, state your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely by Zoom via telephone, enter *9 from 
your keypad to raise your hand.) 
 
13. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) 
and the session duration will be announced prior to the executive session. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
(Three council members serve on the committee with staff to make collaborative recommendations about work 
product. Staff then prepares the items for full Council consideration based on the Committee’s discussion.) 

 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS Date & Time Location 

Economic Development and Tourism  July 8, 2024; 9:30am Remote Access 

Utilities  July 9, 2024; 5:00pm Remote Access and City Hall 

Finance July 16, 2024; 4:00pm Remote Access 

Transportation July 30, 2024; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Land Use  TBD, 2024; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Lodging Tax Advisory  TBD, 2024 City Hall  

Sewer Advisory  September 10, 2024; 3:00pm Remote Access 

Outside Agency Committees Varies Varies 

 
 

ADA Requirements:  In  compliance  with  the  Americans  with  Disabilities  Act,  if  you  need  accommodations  to  
participate  in  this  meeting,  please  contact  the  City  Clerk's  office  at   (360)  876-4407.  Notification  at  least   
48 hours in advance of meeting will enable the City to make arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting. 



     
July 9, 2024, Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 3 of 3 

 
REMINDER: Please silence all electronic devices while City Council is in session. 
 
To subscribe to our general news & public notices click the link: https://portorchardwa.gov/subscribe 

 

 

 

 
Robert (Rob) Putaansuu 

Mayor 
Administrative Official 

Mark Trenary 
Councilmember Position 1 
Finance Committee, Chair 
Transportation Committee 

KRCC 
PSRC-alt 

Jay Rosapepe 
Councilmember Position 2 

Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair 
Land Use Committee, Chair 

KEDA-alt 

Scott Diener 
Councilmember Position 3 

Land Use Committee 
Transportation Committee 
Kitsap Public Health District 

Eric Worden 
Councilmember Position 4 

Land Use Committee 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 

KRCC-alt 

Heidi Fenton 
Councilmember Position 5 

Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee 
Transportation Committee 

Fred Chang 
Councilmember Position 6 

(Mayor Pro-Tempore) 
E/D & Tourism Committee 

Finance Committee 

John Morrissey 
Councilmember Position At-Large 

Finance Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee 

Lodging Tax, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

PSRC EDD-alt 
Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO 

City Clerk 
Debbie Lund, CEBS SPHR SHRM-SCP 

Human Resources Director 
Noah Crocker, M.B.A. 

Finance Director 
Tim Drury 

Municipal Court Judge 

Matt Brown 
Police Chief 

Nicholas Bond, AICP 
Community Development Director 

Denis Ryan, CPWP-M, CPRP 
Public Works Director 

 

https://portorchardwa.gov/subscribe


City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of June 11, 2024 
           
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Chang Present  

Councilmember Diener Present 
Councilmember Fenton Present  
Councilmember Morrissey Present  
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  
Councilmember Trenary Present  
Councilmember Worden Present 
Mayor Putaansuu  Present 

  
Staff present: Public Works Director Ryan, Judge Drury, Police Chief Brown, City Attorney Archer, City 
Clerk Wallace and Deputy City Clerk Floyd. 
 
Staff present via Zoom: Finance Director Crocker and Community Development Director Bond. 
 
The meeting streamed live on YouTube. 
 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Time Stamp 00:59) 

 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:01:17) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Trenary, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to add a new item as 
Business Item to 7A, ‘Adoption of a resolution increasing fees for conflict defense panel attorneys 
and Judges Pro tem’. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Diener, to approve the agenda 
as amended. 
 
The motion carried. 
 

Page 4 of 76



June 11, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS (Time Stamp: 03:35)

There were no citizen comments. 

4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 03:59)
A. Approval of Voucher Nos. 87766 through 87780 and 87788 through 87802 including bank drafts

in the amount of $1,977,605.74 and EFT’s in the amount of $2,012,454.36 totaling $3,990,060.10.
B. Approval of Payroll Check Nos. 87781 through 87787 including bank drafts and EFT’s in the

amount of $272,138.05 and Direct Deposits in the amount of $267,518.84 totaling $539,656.89.
C. Adoption of a Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property as Surplus and Authorizing its

Disposition Thereof (Resolution No. 031-24)
D. Approval of an Updated Memorandum of Understanding for the Kitsap Critical Incident Response

Team (KCIRT) (Contract No. 053-24)
E. Approval of an Alternative Location for City Council Meetings for June, July, August, and

September 2024 due to City Hall Renovation Project
F. Approval of the May 21, 2024, City Council Work Study Minutes

MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Trenary, to approve the Consent 
Agenda as presented. 

The motion carried. 

5. PRESENTATION

There were no presentations. 

6. PUBLIC HEARING

There were no public hearings. 

7. BUSINESS ITEMS

A. NEW: Adoption of a Resolution Increasing Fees for Conflict Defense Panel Attorneys and Judges
Pro Tem (Time Stamp: 05:03)

MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Morrissey, to adopt a 
resolution setting the fees for conflict defense counsel and Judges Pro-tem for the Port Orchard 
Municipal Court. 

The motion carried. 
(Resolution No. 033-24) 

Police Chief Brown and Judge Drury were excused by the Mayor and left the meeting at 6:52pm. 

Page 5 of 76



 

 
June 11, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 6 
 

B. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC Sections 10.12.460 and 10.12.500 Regarding 
Parking Regulation (Time Stamp 20:21) 
 

MOTION: By Councilmember Worden, seconded by Councilmember Trenary, to adopt an ordinance 
amending POMC Chapter 10.12, regarding Parking, Stopping or Standing in the City. 
 
The motion carried. 
(Ordinance No. 010-24) 
 
C. Adoption of an Ordinance Modifying POMC Chapter 2.04 Pertaining to City Council Meeting 

Rules of Procedure (Time Stamp 23:58) 
 
MAIN MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Fenton, to adopt an 
ordinance amending POMC Chapter 2.04, regarding City Council meetings. 
 
AMENDED MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Morrissey, to keep 
the seconded citizen comment period at the end of the meeting on any item. 
 
The amended motion carried. 
 
The main motion carried. 
 
The motion carried.  
(Ordinance No. 011-24) 
 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Amending Resolution No. 030-16, Pertaining to the Rules Governing 

Public Comment at Council Meetings (Time Stamp 37:28) 
 
MAIN MOTION: By Councilmember Trenary, seconded by Councilmember Fenton, to adopt a 
resolution amending Resolution No. 030-16 pertaining to the rules governing public comments during 
regular City Council meetings and also excluding the amendment of removing the second public 
comment section.  

AMENDED MOTION: By Councilmember Morrissey, seconded by Councilmember Fenton, to limit the 
first public comment section to 60-minutes maximum. 

The amended motion failed. Councilmembers Diener, Chang Rosapepe, Trenary and Worden, voted 
no. 

AMENDED MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to amend 
Exhibit A, Number 2, so it reads ‘Each speaker may address the council up to 3-minutes. Once the 3-
minutes have expired, the speaker must cease their comments and leave the podium if comments are 
given in person.’ 

Page 6 of 76



 

 
June 11, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 6 
 

The amended motion carried. 

Councilmember Chang pointed out the language for Exhibit A should read ‘Two public comment 
periods will be provided during regular council meetings. One to occur immediately following the 
Council’s Approval of the Agenda, and the second to occur at the end of the meeting before the Council 
Good of the Order.  

AMENDED MOTION: By Councilmember Morrissey, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to allow 
written comments to be accepted by noon on the day of a Council meeting. 

The amended motion carried. 

The main motion carried. 

The motion carried. 
(Resolution No. 032-24) 
 
E. Approval of an Agreement with Kitsap County Consolidated Housing Authority, dba Housing 

Kitsap for 1406 Funding (Time Stamp 1:12:30) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Fenton, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to authorize the 
Mayor to execute an Agreement with Housing Kitsap for the use of SHB 1406 funds for affordable 
housing in Port Orchard. 
 
Councilmember Chang explained he will be voting no as he believes the money should go towards 
rental assistance. 
 
The motion carried. Councilmembers Chang and Worden voted no. 
(Contract No. 054-24) 
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)  
 
A. City Rules and Procedures (Time Stamp 1:24:09) 
 
City Attorney Archer provided a presentation and discussion was held which included guiding 
principles, branches of government, City Council power and authority, day to day activities, building 
trust, roles of the executive and City Council, labor and personnel, procedures for Councilmembers 
seeking assistance or information from the administration, who runs the City, Council’s most 
important functions, responding to constituent complaints, conduct in meetings, Point of Order, 
conflict of interest, right of inquiry, City Attorney, and concerns by individual Councilmembers. 
 
B. Bethel Phase 1 Blueberry to Salmonberry 60% Design (Time Stamp 1:58:15) 
 

Page 7 of 76



 

 
June 11, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Public Works Director Ryan spoke to the project noting the layout has not changed at this point and 
provided Council with maps to review. 
 
Council and staff provided their comments which included the vegetated medium, public outreach, 
access for businesses, adopted levels of services for the City, turn lanes, vegetation or pavers, budget 
for Tremont, safety, street lights, maintenance, and acquiring rights-of-way. 
 
9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES (Time Stamp 2:22:46) 
 
Councilmember Morrissey reported on the June 10th Economic Development and Tourism 
Committee meeting. The next meeting is scheduled for July 8th. 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe reported on the June 11th Utilities Committee meeting and the June 11th 
Sewer Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
Councilmember Trenary reported on the June 11th Finance Committee meeting. 
 
The Transportation Committee is scheduled to meet June 25th. The Land Use Committee is scheduled 
to meet June 27th. The Sewer Advisory Committee is scheduled to meet September 9th. 
 
10. REPORT OF THE MAYOR (Time Stamp 2:34:50) 

The Mayor reported on the following: 
• Cancellation of the June work study meeting. 
• City Hall remodel and location of council meetings. After a brief discussion, Council agreed 

to host the next few months of Council meetings via Zoom with public access at City Hall. 
• Update on the purchase of 730 Prospect Street. 
• KRCC [Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council] regional funding for the Bethel/Lund project. 
• AWC’s City Vision magazine article about Port Orchard. 
• Juneteenth celebration. 
• Read a positive comment received about Community Development Director Bond. 
• Celebration for former Councilmember John Clauson. 
• In accordance with Ordinance 008-20 “Delegating Authority to the Mayor for Creating 

and Modification of Job Descriptions,” he reported to the Council his approval of the 
revised job description for patrol officers. 

• Read into the record a portion of minutes from 50, 75, and 95 years ago. 
 
11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS (Time Stamp 2:46:39) 
 
Public Works Director Ryan reported the amount that was awarded to the City for the Bethel/Lund 
project was $648,750. Also reported on job updates and reorganization. 
 
Finance Director Crocker asked Council to watch the Finance Committee meeting video as discussion 
was held regrading the budget and an investment policy. 
 

Page 8 of 76



 

 
June 11, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 6 
 

12. CITIZEN COMMENTS ON ANY ITEM (Time Stamp 2:48:30) 
 

Lila Mason said she brought a wheelchair to the meeting and asked someone from the Council to 
volunteer and sit in the wheelchair and try to get out of the bathroom as it is very hard for someone 
in a wheelchair. 
 
13. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER  
 
Not held. 
 
14. EXECUTION SESSION 
 
At 9:18 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu recessed the meeting for a 5-minute break. 
 
At 9:23 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu reconvened the meeting back into session. 
 
At 9:23 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu recessed the meeting for a 20-minute executive session pursuant to 
RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) pertaining to legal risk. City Attorney Archer and Public Works Director Ryan was 
invited to attend, and City Attorney Archer noted no action will follow.  
 
At 9:43 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu extended the meeting an additional 10-minutes. 
 
At 9:53 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu extended the meeting an additional 10-minutes. 
 
At 10:03 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu extended the meeting an additional 10-minutes. 
 
At 10:13 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu extended the meeting an additional 5-minutes. 
 
At 10:18 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu reconvened the meeting back into session.  
 
15. ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:18 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

 

         
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 9 of 76



 

 

 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7A    Mee�ng Date:  July 9, 2024 
 
Subject:  Prepared By:  Denis Ryan 

 Public Works Director 
 

 

Summary:  In 2023, the City Council adopted the City’s 2023 Stormwater and Watersheds Comprehensive 
Plan following a mul�-year collabora�ve effort to evaluate the City’s stormwater drainage system and its 
impact on the community. Concurrently with the development of the Comprehensive Plan, the City 
commissioned a rate study conducted by FCS Group to evaluate the City’s exis�ng monthly base rate for 
storm drainage, as well as the need for a capital facility charge to fund the construc�on of addi�onal 
facili�es to support growth. The results of this effort were memorialized in Ordinance No. 038-23, which 
was adopted by the City Council in late 2023. The Ordinance updated the base charge for storm drainage 
services into the future, based on the evaluated needs set forth in the rate study. In early 2024, the Council 
amended Ordinance No. 038-23, to make technical amendments necessary for effec�ve and efficient 
implementa�on of the rates set in 2023.  

During implementa�on of the new rates, staff iden�fied an addi�onal technical amendment to meet the 
needs of the City’s billing so�ware and billing cycle. The storm drainage u�lity service charges, just like 
water service charges, are billed to u�lity customers every two months. The billing cycle is staggard so a 
por�on of customers are billed each month, with the other por�on of customers billed the following 
month. For water service charges the annual increase in rates is triggered on either January 1st or February 
1st, depending on the customer’s cycle, as “the rates in effect on the first day of the billing date are charged 
for the en�re billing period.” POMC 13.04.010. This process is to avoid the applica�on of two different 
rates to one customer for one billing cycle and necessitated by the City’s billing so�ware.  

Staff requests the same approach for the billing of storm drainage service charges, and requests the 
inser�on of this language into POMC 13.06.100 to clarify that, for storm drainage service charges, “the 
rates in effect on the first day of the billing date are charged for the en�re billing period.” 

Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends adop�on of an ordinance amending 13.06.100 to insert the 
aforemen�oned language. 

Rela�onship to Comprehensive Plan:   Chapter 7: U�li�es 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street Port Orchard, WA 98366 

cityhall@portorchardwa.gov | (360) 876-4407 
www.portorchardwa.gov 

Adop�on of an Ordinance Amending 
POMC § 13.06.100, Pertaining to 
Stormwater Rate Implementa�on  

Page 10 of 76

mailto:cityhall@portorchardwa.gov


Mo�on for considera�on:  I move to adopt an Ordinance amending 13.06.100 pertaining to the billing 
cycle for storm drainage service charges. 

Fiscal Impact:   The amendments would have a de minimus impact on the collec�on of fees. 

Alterna�ves:  Do not approve and provide alterna�ve guidance. 

Atachments: Ordinance  
Redline of proposed POMC amendment 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 76



 
ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

           
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO 
THE STORM DRAINAGE RATES; AMENDING POMC SECTION 13.06.100; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council recently amended the City’s utility rates and fees via 
Ordinance No. 005-24; and  

WHEREAS, during implementation, the Finance Department identified a technical 
amendment to ensure the implementation of updated rates aligns with the billing cycle and 
associated software; and  

WHEREAS, this amendment would align the stormwater rates billing process with the 
current processes for water billing; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the technical amendment herein is consistent with 
goals and policies of the City's 2023 Stormwater and Watersheds Comprehensive Plan and 
related regulations, and serve the public health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
Port Orchard; now, therefore,  

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Amendment. Section 13.06.100 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to read as follows:  

13.06.100 Storm drainage service charges.  

In accordance with the basis for a rate structure set forth in POMC 13.06.070 and 13.06.080, 
there is levied upon all developed real property within the boundaries of the utility the 
following service charges which shall be collected from the owners of such properties. Rates in 
effect on the first day of the billing date are charged for the entire billing period. 

*** 

 SECTION 2. Severability. Should any portion of this ordinance be held to be 
unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   

 
SECTION 3.  Savings Clause.  Those portions of the Port Orchard Municipal Code which 

are amended by this ordinance shall remain in force and effect as set out prior to this ordinance 
until the effective date of this ordinance.  Such amendments shall not be construed as affecting 

Page 12 of 76



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
any existing right acquired under the laws repealed, nor as affecting any proceeding instituted 
thereunder, nor any rule, regulation or order promulgated thereunder.   

SECTION 4.  Ratification.  Any act consistent with this chapter and prior to the effective 
date of the ordinance codified herein is hereby ratified and affirmed 

SECTION 5.  Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 
consisting of the title.  

SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect five days after publication, as provided by law.    

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of July 2024. 
 
 
 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
        
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 

Page 13 of 76



10892826.1 - 366922 - 0001 

POMC 13.06.100 - Redline of Amendments 

 

13.06.100 Storm drainage service charges. 

In accordance with the basis for a rate structure set forth in POMC 13.06.070 and 13.06.080, there 
is levied upon all developed real property within the boundaries of the utility the following service 
charges which shall be collected from the owners of such properties. The rates in effect on the first 
day of the billing date are charged for the en�re billing period.: 

(1) Effective June 1, 2024, the storm drainage charges are shown below: 

(a) For all single-family residential uses, including mobile homes, the monthly 
service charge shall be $18.34. 

(b) For all other developed property, including but not limited to duplex, single-
family residential with accessory dwelling unit(s), triplex, multifamily, and 
commercial accounts, the monthly service charge shall be $18.34, multiplied by the 
number of ISUs determined by the utility to be contained in such parcel pursuant to 
POMC 13.06.080. 

(2) Effective January 1, 2025, the storm drainage charges are shown below: 

(a) For all detached house accounts, including mobile homes, the monthly service 
charge shall be $24.03. 

(b) For all other developed property, including but not limited to duplex, single-
family residential with accessory dwelling unit(s), triplex, multifamily and 
commercial accounts, the monthly service charge shall be $24.03, multiplied by the 
number of ISUs determined by the utility to be contained in such parcel pursuant to 
POMC 13.06.080. 

(3) Effective January 1, 2026, the storm drainage charges are shown below: 

(a) For all detached houses accounts, including mobile homes, the monthly service 
charge shall be $31.47. 

(b) For all other developed property, including but not limited to duplex, single-
family residential with accessory dwelling unit(s), triplex, multifamily and 
commercial accounts, the monthly service charge shall be $31.47, multiplied by the 
number of ISUs determined by the utility to be contained in such parcel pursuant to 
POMC 13.06.080. 

(4) Effective January 1, 2027, the storm drainage charges are shown below: 

(a) For all detached houses, including mobile homes, the monthly service charge 
shall be $32.42. 

(b) For all other developed property, including but not limited to duplex, single-
family residential with accessory dwelling unit(s), triplex, multifamily and 

Page 14 of 76



10892826.1 - 366922 - 0001 

commercial accounts, the monthly service charge shall be $32.42, multiplied by the 
number of ISUs determined by the utility to be contained in such parcel pursuant to 
POMC 13.06.080. 

(5) Effective January 1, 2028, the storm drainage charges are shown below: 

(a) For all detached houses, including mobile homes, the monthly service charge 
shall be $33.39. 

(b) For all other developed property, including but not limited to duplex, single-
family residential with accessory dwelling unit(s), triplex, multifamily and 
commercial accounts, the monthly service charge shall be $33.39, multiplied by the 
number of ISUs determined by the utility to be contained in such parcel pursuant to 
POMC 13.06.080. 

Page 15 of 76



 

 

 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7B    Mee�ng Date:  July 9, 2024 
 
Subject:  Prepared By:  Charlote Archer 

   City Atorney  
 
 

 

Summary:  The State of Washington, as a par�cipant in mul�-state li�ga�on, has been ac�vely 
pursuing li�ga�on against a variety of en��es that are manufacturers and distributors of prescrip�on 
opioids, in an effort to combat the opioid crisis in Washington. The State has alleged that the 
manufacturers of prescrip�on opioids grossly misrepresented the risks of long-term use of those 
drugs for persons with chronic pain, and distributors failed to properly monitor suspicious orders of 
those prescrip�on drugs—all of which contributed to the current opioid epidemic. In one piece of 
the ongoing li�ga�on, the State has reached a setlement with the en�ty Kroger (which does business 
in WA as QFC and Fred Meyer) in the amount of $47.5 million dedicated to aba�ng the opioid crisis 
in Washington. Coun�es, as well as ci�es in Washington with a popula�on of over 10,000, will receive 
distribu�ons of these funds if they sign onto the setlement.  

Port Orchard’s alloca�on is 0.00100949716200 percent. This amounts to approximately $47,000 for 
distribu�on. The uses of the funds are limited by the setlement agreement primarily for purposes of 
responding to, dealing with, or helping people recover from the impacts of opioid addic�on (See 
pages 97-105 of the Kroger Mul�state Setlement Agreement available here.  

To par�cipate in this setlement, the City must opt in by execu�ng the Par�cipa�on Form and 
Alloca�on Agreement by August 12, 2024. This will not infringe the City’s ability to par�cipate in 
future li�ga�on or setlements as they may relate to other manufacturers or distributors. 

Recommenda�on:  Take ac�on to authorize par�cipa�on in the setlement. 

Has this item been presented to Commitee/Work Study? If so, which one: No 

Rela�onship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Mo�on for considera�on:  Mo�on to adopt a Resolu�on to authorize par�cipa�on in the setlement 
with Kroger to combat the opioid crisis in Washington.  

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street Port Orchard, WA 98366 

cityhall@portorchardwa.gov | (360) 876-4407 
www.portorchardwa.gov 

Adop�on of a Resolu�on Approving WA 
AGO Setlement with Kroger as Part of 
Ongoing Opioid Li�ga�on to Combat 
Opioid Crisis 

Page 16 of 76

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/nationalopioidsettlement.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/Kroger-Multistate-Settlement-Agreement-Circulated-to-States-March-25-2024.pdf
mailto:cityhall@portorchardwa.gov


Business Item 7B 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Fiscal Impact:  This will result in Port Orchard receiving approximately $47,000 for the distribu�on of 
this setlement. 

Alterna�ves:  Do not approve and provide alterna�ve guidance.  

Atachments: Resolu�on, Par�cipa�on Form, and Alloca�on Agreement 

     

 

 

 

Page 17 of 76



RESOLUTION NO.  ______-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
PARTICIPATION IN MULTI-STATE SETTLEMENT WITH KROGER TO RECEIVE 
PROCEEDS FROM THE LITIGATION TO COMBAT THE OPIOID CRISIS IN 
WASHINGTON. 

 
 WHEREAS, the State of Washington, as a participant in multi-state litigation, filed a lawsuit 
against entities that are manufacturers and distributors of prescription opioids, including the 
company Kroger; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the states have reached a settlement with Kroger in the amount of $47 million, 
of which a portion will be dedicated to abating the opioid crisis in Washington; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Port Orchard is eligible to receive 0.00100949716200 of the proceeds if it 
executes a the required forms by August 12, 2024 to participate in the settlement;  
 
 WHEREAS, the settlement funds may be used for opioid abatement, including opioid 
education, treatment and remediation of impacts that opioids have had in the Port Orchard 
community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to have the City execute the 
participation form in order to secure more funds for use in responding to the opioid crisis consistent 
with the uses outlined in the settlement agreement with the State of Washington; now, therefore; 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above are 
hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
THAT: The Mayor is authorized to execute the Participation Form and Allocation 
Agreement(s) attached hereto as Exhibit A, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney. The 
Mayor is further authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the direction set 
forth herein.  
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of July 2024. 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 18 of 76



 

K-1 

EXHIBIT K 

Subdivision Participation and Release Form 

Governmental Entity: State: 

Authorized Official:  

Address 1:  

Address 2:  

City, State, Zip:  

Phone:  

Email:   

 

 The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and 

in consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Settlement 

Agreement dated March 22, 2024 (“Kroger Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned 

authorized official, hereby elects to participate in the Kroger Settlement, release all Released 

Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.   

 

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Kroger Settlement, understands 

that all terms in this Participation and Release Form have the meanings defined therein, 

and agrees that by executing this Participation and Release Form, the Governmental Entity 

elects to participate in the Kroger Settlement and become a Participating Subdivision as 

provided therein.  

 

2. The Governmental Entity shall promptly, and in any event no later than 14 days after the 

Reference Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any 

Released Claims that it has filed.  With respect to any Released Claims pending in In re 

National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity 

authorizes the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the 

Governmental Entity a Stipulation of Dismissal with Prejudice substantially in the form 

found at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/. 

 

3. The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the Kroger Settlement pertaining to 

Participating Subdivisions as defined therein.  

 

4. By agreeing to the terms of the Kroger Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the 

Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, 

monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.  

 

5. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Kroger 

Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.   

 

6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental 

Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role 

as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Kroger Settlement.  

The Governmental Entity likewise agrees to arbitrate before the National Arbitration Panel 

Page 19 of 76



 

K-2 

as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent otherwise provided in, the Kroger 

Settlement. 

 

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Kroger Settlement as provided 

therein. 

 

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for 

all purposes in the Kroger Settlement, including without limitation all provisions of Section 

XI (Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, 

districts, instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official 

capacity elected or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other 

entity claiming by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified in the 

definition of Releasor, provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority.  As a 

Releasor, the Governmental Entity hereby absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably 

covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or 

claimed, or to otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released Claims against any 

Released Entity in any forum whatsoever.  The releases provided for in the Kroger 

Settlement are intended by the Parties to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the 

Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any liability relating in any way to 

Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to 

release claims.  The Kroger Settlement shall be a complete bar to any Released Claim. 

 

9. The Governmental Entity hereby takes on all rights and obligations of a Participating 

Subdivision as set forth in the Kroger Settlement. 

 

10. In connection with the releases provided for in the Kroger Settlement, each Governmental 

Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and 

benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other 

jurisdiction, or principle of common law, which is similar, comparable, or equivalent to 

§ 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads: 

 

General Release; extent.  A general release does not extend to claims that 

the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her 

favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her would 

have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released 

party. 

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows, 

believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental 

Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and 

discharges, upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such 

date but which Releasors do not know or suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, 

oversight, error, negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would 

materially affect the Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Kroger 

Settlement. 

 

Page 20 of 76



 

K-3 

11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Kroger Settlement, to 

which Governmental Entity hereby agrees.  To the extent this Participation and Release 

Form is interpreted differently from the Kroger Settlement in any respect, the Kroger 

Settlement controls.   

 

I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation and Release Form 

on behalf of the Governmental Entity. 

 

     Signature: ______________________________ 

 

     Name:  ______________________________ 

 

     Title:  ______________________________ 

 

     Date:  ______________________________ 

Page 21 of 76



 

1 

WASHINGTON STATE ALLOCATION AGREEMENT GOVERNING THE 
ALLOCATION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS PAID BY KROGER  

JUNE 28, 2024 

This Washington State Allocation Agreement Governing the Allocation of Opioid 
Settlement Funds Paid by Kroger (the “Allocation Agreement III”) governs the distribution of 
funds obtained from the Kroger Co. (“Kroger”) in connection with the resolution of any and all 
claims by the State of Washington and the counties, cities, and towns in Washington State 
(“Local Governments”) against Kroger via the Kroger Settlement Agreement dated March 22, 
2024 (“Settlement”). The Settlement can be accessed at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/. 
The terms and definitions of the Settlement are incorporated into this Allocation Agreement III, 
and any undefined terms in this Allocation Agreement III are as defined in the Settlement. 

1. This Allocation Agreement III is intended to be a State-Subdivision Agreement as 
defined in the Settlement. This Allocation Agreement III shall be interpreted to be 
consistent with the requirements of a State-Subdivision Agreement in the 
Settlement. 

2. This Allocation Agreement III shall become effective only if all of the following 
occur: 

A. The State of Washington joins the Settlement and becomes a Settling State 
as provided for in the Settlement. 

B. The Settlement becomes final and effective and a Consent Judgment is 
filed and approved as provided for in the Settlement.    

C. The number of Local Governments that execute and return this Allocation 
Agreement III satisfies the participation requirements for a State-
Subdivision Agreement as specified in the Settlement. 

3. Requirements to become a Participating Local Government. To become a 
Participating Local Government that can participate in this Allocation Agreement 
III, a Local Government must do all of the following:  

A. The Local Government must execute and return this Allocation 
Agreement III. 

B. The Local Government must release its claims against Kroger identified in 
the Settlement and agree to be bound by the terms of the Settlement by 
timely executing and returning the Participation Form, which is Exhibit K 
of the Settlement.  

C. Litigating Subdivisions, also referred to as Litigating Local Governments, 
must dismiss Kroger with prejudice from their lawsuits.  

Page 22 of 76

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


 

2 

D. Each of the Local Governments that is eligible to participate in this 
Allocation Agreement III has previously executed and signed the One 
Washington Memorandum of Understanding Between Washington 
Municipalities (“MOU”) agreed to by the Participating Local 
Governments in Washington State, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  
By executing this Allocation Agreement III, the local government agrees 
and affirms that the MOU applies to and shall govern the Local 
Government Share as modified by this Allocation Agreement III for the 
Settlement. 

A Local Government that meets all of the conditions in this paragraph shall be 
deemed a “Participating Local Government.”    

4. This Allocation Agreement III applies to the State of Washington’s allocation of 
the (1) Adjusted State Remediation Payment and (2) Additional Remediation 
Amount, which collectively shall be referred to as the “Washington Abatement 
Amount.” As specified in the Settlement, the Washington Abatement Amount will 
vary dependent on the percentage of Participating Local Governments and 
whether there are any Later Litigating Subdivisions. 

5. This Allocation Agreement III does not apply to the State Cost Fund, State AG 
Fees and Costs, or any attorneys’ fees, fees, costs, or expenses referred to in the 
Settlement or that are paid directly or indirectly via the Settlement to the State of 
Washington (“State’s Fees and Costs”). 

6. This Allocation Agreement III and the MOU are a State Back-Stop Agreement. 
Kroger is paying a portion of the Local Governments’ attorneys’ fees and costs as 
provided for in the Settlement. The total contingent fees an attorney receives from 
the Contingency Fee Fund in the Settlement, the MOU, and this Allocation 
Agreement III combined cannot exceed 15% of the portion of the LG Share paid 
to the Litigating Local Government that retained that firm to litigate against the 
Settling Entities (i.e., if City X filed suit with outside counsel on a contingency 
fee contract and City X receives $1,000,000 from the Settlement, then the 
maximum that the firm can receive is $150,000 for fees as to the Kroger 
Settlement.) 

7. No portion of the State’s Fees and Costs and/or the State Share as defined in 
Paragraphs 5 and 9 of this Allocation Agreement III shall be used to fund the 
Government Fee Fund (“GFF”) referred to in Paragraph 11 of this Allocation 
Agreement III and Section D of the MOU, or in any other way to fund any 
Participating Local Government’s attorneys’ fees, costs, or common benefit tax. 

8. The Washington Abatement Amount shall and must be used by the State and 
Participating Local Governments for future Opioid Remediation as defined in the 
Settlement, except as allowed by the Settlement.  

Page 23 of 76



 

3 

9. The State and the Participating Local Governments agree to divide the 
Washington Abatement Amount as follows: 

A. Fifty percent (50%) to the State of Washington (“State Share”). 

B. Fifty percent (50%) to the Participating Local Governments (“LG Share”). 

10. The LG Share shall be distributed to Participating Local Governments pursuant to 
the MOU as amended and modified in this Allocation Agreement III. 

11. For purposes of this Allocation Agreement III only, the MOU is modified as 
follows and any contrary provisions in the MOU are struck:  

A. Exhibit A of the MOU is replaced by Exhibit E of the Settlement.   

B. The definition of “Litigating Local Governments” in Section A.4 of the 
MOU shall mean Litigating Subdivisions as defined in the Settlement and 
shall also include any local government that notified Judge Polster in Case 
No. 1:17-md-02804-DAP of its intent to sue Kroger in 2023 after the 
release of updated ARCOS data. 

C. The definition of “National Settlement Agreement” in Section A.6 of the 
MOU shall mean the Settlement.  

D. The definition of “Settlement” in Section A.14 of the MOU shall mean the 
Settlement. 

E. The MOU is amended to add new Section C.4.g.vIII, which provides as 
follows: 

“If a Participating Local Government receiving a direct payment 
(a) uses Opioid Funds other than as provided for in the Settlement, 
(b) does not comply with conditions for receiving direct payments 
under the MOU, or (c) does not promptly submit necessary 
reporting and compliance information to its Regional Opioid 
Abatement Counsel (“Regional OAC”) as defined at Section C.4.h 
of the MOU, then the Regional OAC may suspend direct payments 
to the Participating Local Government after notice, an opportunity 
to cure, and sufficient due process. If direct payments to 
Participating Local Government are suspended, the payments shall 
be treated as if the Participating Local Government is foregoing 
their allocation of Opioid Funds pursuant to Section C.4.d and 
C.4.j.IIIi of the MOU. In the event of a suspension, the Regional 
OAC shall give prompt notice to the suspended Participating Local 
Government and the Settlement Fund Administrator specifying the 
reasons for the suspension, the process for reinstatement, the 
factors that will be considered for reinstatement, and the due 
process that will be provided. A suspended Participating Local 

Page 24 of 76



 

4 

Government may apply to the Regional OAC to be reinstated for 
direct payments no earlier than five years after the date of 
suspension.” 

F. The amounts payable to each law firm representing a Litigating Local 
Government from the GFF shall be consistent with the MOU and the 
process set forth in the Order Appointing the Fee Panel to Allocate and 
Disburse Attorney’s Fees Provided for in State Back-Stop Agreements, 
Case No. 1:17-md-02804-DAP Doc #: 4543 (June 17, 2022).   All 
amounts that the City of Seattle has contributed to the GFF shall be 
returned to the City of Seattle by the Settlement Administrator rather than 
paid to Hagens Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP.  

G. The GFF set forth in the MOU shall be funded by the LG Share of the 
Washington Abatement Amount only. To the extent the common benefit 
tax is not already payable by the Settling Entities as contemplated by 
Section D.8 of the MOU, the GFF shall be used to pay Litigating Local 
Government contingency fee agreements and any common benefit tax 
referred to in Section D of the MOU, which shall be paid on a pro rata 
basis to eligible law firms as determined by the GFF Administrator.  

H. To fund the GFF, fifteen percent (15%) of the LG Share shall be deposited 
in the GFF from each LG Share settlement payment until the Litigating 
Subdivisions’ contingency fee agreements and common benefit tax (if 
any) referred to in Section D of the MOU are satisfied. Under no 
circumstances will any Primary Subdivision or Litigating Local 
Government be required to contribute to the GFF more than 15% of the 
portion of the LG Share allocated to such Primary Subdivision or 
Litigating Local Government.  In addition, under no circumstances will 
any portion of the LG Share allocated to a Litigating Local Government be 
used to pay the contingency fees or litigation expenses of counsel for some 
other Litigating Local Government.  

I. The maximum amount of any Litigating Local Government contingency 
fee agreement (from the Contingency Fee Fund of the Settlement) payable 
to a law firm permitted for compensation shall be fifteen percent (15%) of 
the portion of the LG Share paid to the Litigating Local Government that 
retained that firm (i.e., if City X filed suit with outside counsel on a 
contingency fee contract and City X receives $1,000,000 from the 
Settlement, then the maximum that the firm can receive is $150,000 for 
fees.) The firms also shall be paid documented expenses due under their 
contingency fee agreements that have been paid by the law firm 
attributable to that Litigating Local Government. Consistent with 
Agreement on Attorneys’ Fees, Costs, and Expenses, which is Exhibit R 
of the Settlement, amounts due to Participating Litigating Subdivisions’ 
attorneys under this Allocation Agreement III shall not impact (i) costs 
paid by the subdivisions to their attorneys pursuant to a State Back-Stop 

Page 25 of 76



 

5 

agreement, (ii) fees paid to subdivision attorneys from the Common 
Benefit Fund for common benefit work performed by the attorneys 
pursuant to Exhibit R of the Settlement, or (iii) costs paid to subdivision 
attorneys from the MDL Expense Fund for expenses incurred by the 
attorneys pursuant to the Settlement. 

J. Under no circumstances may counsel receive more for its work on behalf 
of a Litigating Local Government than it would under its contingency 
agreement with that Litigating Local Government. To the extent a law 
firm was retained by a Litigating Local Government on a contingency fee 
agreement that provides for compensation at a rate that is less than fifteen 
percent (15%) of that Litigating Local Government’s recovery, the 
maximum amount payable to that law firm referred to in Section D.3 of 
the MOU shall be the percentage set forth in that contingency fee 
agreement. 

K. For the avoidance of doubt, both payments from the GFF and the payment 
to the Participating Litigating Local Governments’ attorneys from the 
Contingency Fee Fund in the Settlement shall be included when 
calculating whether the aforementioned fifteen percent (15%) maximum 
percentage (or less if the provisions of Paragraph 10.J of this Allocation 
Agreement III apply) of any Litigating Local Government contingency fee 
agreement referred to above has been met. 

L. To the extent there are any excess funds in the GFF, the Settlement 
Administrator shall facilitate the return of those funds to the Participating 
Local Governments as provided for in Section D.6 of the MOU. 

12. In connection with the execution and administration of this Allocation Agreement 
III, the State and the Participating Local Governments agree to abide by the 
Public Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq.  

13. All Participating Local Governments, Regional OACs, and the State shall 
maintain all non-transitory records related to this Allocation Agreement III as 
well as the receipt and expenditure of the funds from the Settlement for no less 
than five (5) years. 

14. If any party to this Allocation Agreement III believes that a Participating Local 
Government, Regional OAC, the State, an entity, or individual involved in the 
receipt, distribution, or administration of the funds from the Settlement has 
violated any applicable ethics codes or rules, a complaint shall be lodged with the 
appropriate forum for handling such matters, with a copy of the complaint 
promptly sent to the Washington Attorney General, Complex Litigation Division, 
Division Chief, 800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000, Seattle, Washington 98104. 

15. To the extent (i) a region utilizes a pre-existing regional body to establish its 
Opioid Abatement Council pursuant to the Section 4.h of the MOU, and (III) that 

Page 26 of 76



 

6 

pre-existing regional body is subject to the requirements of the Community 
Behavioral Health Services Act, RCW 71.24 et seq., the State and the 
Participating Local Governments agree that the Opioid Funds paid by Kroger is 
subject to the requirements of the MOU and this Allocation Agreement III. 

16. Upon request by Kroger, the Participating Local Governments must comply with 
the Tax Cooperation and Reporting provisions of the Settlement.  

17. Venue for any legal action related to this Allocation Agreement III (separate and 
apart from the MOU or the Settlement) shall be in King County, Washington. 

18. Each party represents that all procedures necessary to authorize such party’s 
execution of this Allocation Agreement III have been performed and that such 
person signing for such party has been authorized to execute this Allocation 
Agreement III. 

 

  

Page 27 of 76



Page 28 of 76



 

8 

FOR THE PARTICIPATING LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 
 
 
Name of Participating Local Government:   
 
 
 
Authorized signature:   
 
 
 
Name:   
 
 
 
Title:   
 
 
 
Date:   
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 29 of 76



 

9 

EXHIBIT 1 
One Washington Memorandum of Understanding Between Washington Municipalities  

Page 30 of 76



��

�������	
���������������������������
��������������	
��������
�
���
�
������������������� ���!�����"������!�����#$%��$��$&�#���'�(()$#�#�����*��+��$����(�&�+,��$�#�#���-#��#$�����.���(�'�)�#'� �")�� ,�/��#$�-���(�$)!�'�)����&#���#+)�����$&�&#���$�������'�#��#�$���#�#&�0�����������'����#$�1�'� �2�*��$(�$��������)%�����#��� �'��&��������$���#*����$&�'�)$�� �������$%�%�&�#$� #�#%��#�$����3#$%������ &��������$�#�#���-#��#$�����.���(�'�)�#'� �")�� ,�/��#$��!�����'�#��#�$���#�#&���''�)$��+ ��!�������&�(�%�����,���*��'�)��&��������1�'� �2�*��$(�$��0����������1�'� �2�*��$(�$����$&�� �'��&��!!#'#� ����������'�((�$�&��#�������+�����$&��  �*#��������#(��'����!����(��'�)��&�+,��������$�#�#���-#��#$�����.���(�'�)�#'� �")�� ,�/��#$�����)%��)������"������!�����#$%��$���$&����#*������$�)����������#$'#�� ���!��4)#�,��$&��4)#��+ �����*#'��&� #*��,�����!�'�����'�$�#&���&�#$������  �'��#�$��$&�)����!�5�#�#&�6)$&�0��$&����������'����#$�1�'� �2�*��$(�$����$%�%�&�#$� #�#%��#�$��$&�����������'#�#����$&�'�)$�#���#$�����#$%��$�&��#�������%�����$���!��(��!��  �'��#�$�!���5�#�#&�6)$&�����,���'�#*��!��(��$�#�#���-#��#$�����.���(�'�)�#'� �")�� ,�/��#$7�8�-������!���������1�'� �2�*��$(�$����$����#$�����#��9�(���$&)(��!�:$&�����$&#$%�;<95:=>��� ��#$%���������  �'��#�$��$&�)����!��������'��&���!�"��� �(�$���&��'�#+�&7���? �@ABCBDBECF��G��)��&�#$���#��95:H�I7 <G  �'��#�$�J�%#�$�=�����������(��%��%����#'���������������K#��#$%�$#$��;L>�����#$%��$�"�����G''�)$��+ ��/�(()$#�,��!�M�� ���;G/M>�J�%#�$���$&���*�������)������&��'�#+�&�#$�"�'�#�$�/�+� �-7���N7 <G����*�&�.)�����;�>=����  �(��$�����������%#������'#!#�&��$&�����!�����#$�����5�#�#&�G+���(�$��"�����%#�������'��&����OK�#+#��G7��P7 <O!!�'�#*��Q���=����  �(��$�����&�����$�-�#'����'�)����!�'�(����$��R)�#�&#'�#�$��$���������!#����"��� �(�$��+,���&������'�$��$��&�'���7�S���.���#����$�#'#����������(�������$��$��"��� �(�$��-#  �+���&(#$#�����&��''��&#$%�����������(���!���#��95:��+)�����������!#�����$����&�"��� �(�$��-#  ���#%%����  �'��#�$��!�5�#�#&�6)$&��#$��''��&�$'��-#���"�'�#�$�T�����#$���$&�����!��(��#�$��!�����5�#�#&�G+���(�$��/�)$'# ��#$�"�'�#�$�/7��U7 <1#�#%��#$%�1�'� �2�*��$(�$�;�>=����  �(��$�1�'� �2�*��$(�$��������!# �&��)#���%�#$����$,�.���(�'�)�#'� �")�� ,�/��#$�.���#'#��$�������#$#$%��������5�#�#&���#&�(#'���#������"����(+���I��NVNV7��
Page 31 of 76



��

�� ����	
����������������	

��	��	

�����������������	�����������������������	����������	���������� �	�����!	�����������"� �#	����	
� ��
����$���������	�������	����	
�����������
����	��������	���%�
&�'(��')'(�����
�����%�������*�%��������	����������������$��������+�����,	����	
�-	
���	���.�/�����	���

�	��������������	�����	���
�	�������������	�������������	���������#	����	
� ��
����$�����������
������	

�	����������������0� �1������2��������	

��	������	�&�	����������	������������	� ��
����	����������������.13���4� �1������$�	�����,�����
����	

��	������	���������������� ������,��
�����5� �6	������	��������	
����������������	

��	��	

�����������������	�����������������������	����������	���������� �	����	���	���������������������������.13��7��6	������	��������	
������������	&��������������	�	�
&���������.13�	���6	������	�����,��������	����6	������	�����,�����	���7�����������6	������	�����,��������7�������	��	�������	�������6	���������()� �6�	��	�����	
� ���
&�,�	������	

��	������������	�����	��
����������������������

�������	����	���	���	��������	�8�������������������������	��9���������������
����������������������������((� �6�	��	�����	
� ���
&�,�	���6	������	������	

��	��	�&�����&���	����	����������	����	����������	���	�������	�8�������������������������������	��9����������������	������������������������
������	�&�����&���	���	��	����������	�&�������	������('� �:�	
����� ��
����2����$�������������: 2�$�����������	

��	��	��	�������������	��	�;�	
��������
����������<"4��������	��	������=���&�7�	���&�>��
	������(�<"4+?(�����'"�,2>�@(�<"4+?(����(A� �>����	
�$����������	

��	�����������	�������	�����&����6	������	��������	
�,�������	���,������������	��$

��	�����>�����������������	

��	�������	�	����������������������1������2��������������	��$

��	�����>��������(<� � ��
�������	

��	����������������	������
���������
�	
����;���	�
��
	����	�	�����	�6�	��	�����	
� ���
&�,�	���6	������	���������	�����
�������	�����B����
&������������&����6	������	��������	
������������� ��
�����C����
&������������
���	��
	���������	��=	�������������������7��
�((������3����� �	���,��������������������C�������������6	������	��������	
�������������������	��������������������������������
	���������	��=	�������
Page 32 of 76



��

��� ���	
����
���������������������������	
��������
����������
���
�����������������
���������
����������
������������	��
�������������  �	������!���� ��������"� ���#�$�������
��
��	�����%���������������  �	����������������&����
����������	�����������	
�����'� �����(�
��������������)  �	�������*���	�����
����+����������)*+�
�������������������,-.�������
���
 ����������� �����*����������/0 1223456738�39�:;662;<;86�=>34;;?@�93>�1AA>3B;?�=C>A3@;@���� )�����������	��
�
����������������������������
����	�����&�������	
���D������������������������!���� ��������"� ���#�$�������
D����&������������� ��
�
�������������
�E�F��G�
����	����������������	��
���������
	�H� ����������� ����
�
������	���������������������
���������������������$�����	��� ��  �	��������&���������
����� &����I� )�����������	��
D���������

�������� �����D�
��������	����%����	�
	�������)����$���!	���
�
��
��������������������
������������JK������)��*������� ����������
���L	��������
��������$������������	������������D��
�
����	��������
�E�F���M� ������$�
���������������	��
�
��������
��������� ��������!���� ��������*�	����
���
��������������������&�	����%�����������N�����������*��

����OP�QRS�TUVWXPUY�Z[R\][ŴVWXP�_̂WUVR�̀WVWaUVWXPD�F�����������
�G�
��� ��*�	�����������N��������G�
��� ���������D�*�
��N����b�cd��deIfegdG)!���������� ������������	
�
��������L	���&������������ ���
b�,�.��������	������������
�
�������������� �	��&h�,I.������	��������������������
�������  	������������� �	��&h�����,M.������	�������������������
	������������	
����
�������������� �	��&���������� ��������� ������
��������
	������������� ������������
�����������&�����
�����������������*�	��&��������������������JK������i��j�������$������&� �	��&����
���������� ������������
�E�FD������ �	��&k
���� �������
�����
�������������� ������������������&������
������!���� ��������*�	����
��&�����&�������
�
��������������&�������&�����!���� ��������*�	����
����g� )��� ������������
����	����������������	��
���������� ��!���� ��������*�	��&�����������
������������������������
��
���
 ����������� �����*����l0 m;n73852�1n>;;<;86@���� ���������	���
��������
�E�FD��������������
��	 �	��������� �
���d��������������������������	������� ����������������
���	�������������,-.����d��������(�
��������������)  �	�������*���	���&����+������o�����
�,)��� ������o�����
.��o������ ��������
�����d��������������
��
�
����&����������	���
�����
Page 33 of 76



��

������	�	
�	��������������
��������������
��
	�������	�

�
����������
�������������������
�������������
	�������
��������������� ���	������ �!"��	�
������ ��
	���#��� $�
��
������ �!"��	�
������ ��
	���#��� �� ������������� ����%
�����
	����!�������&�'
��
����&������������������
�#��� ������
�$���������������������
��
	����!������(&�)�� ��%�����&�*
���&+����&�$������&��������&�����,�-��-���������
�#��� .����"������
	����!/�����&�"���'���&�"-�	��&�"������&�����,������������
�#��� "���,
����
	����!����-&�����-����&�����"-�������������
�#��� )�
��
������������
	����!������&�0
����&���������&�����-���&�)����
��&���������&�,�����,����&�,�����&�����1�-����������
�#��� "��-��
��
	����!�����&��
�� &�*������&�$
�����
���
&�"��-��
&��������"�
2
���������
�#��� .�����
�������
	����!�
���&�3��	���&�)����&������-���	���������
�#��4� �������������������
��������
�&����������
����������	
��������
���������������
	���&�����
�
����
��� ������
	�������	�

�
�������
��������
�����/�����������������
	������
�������2
����
	�������	�

�
���
���
���
���������+�5&�������
����������
6�
��� ����������
	�������	�

�
����
��"
��������7&��
��
�������
���������������������&����������������������	
�
��������������������
�����
�����"
��������8������������ ��9���������������
	����������2
�����������
������������������
������������
��������
��
���
��� ��
	�������	�

�
����������
����������"
��������8��:� ���	������ ;���
	�������	�

�
�������
��
��
�����9<��������������+�5��8� ������
��������������
	����������2
�������
����
�����
	�������	�

�
����������������	&������������	���������	��	�������������&���������� ��
���������	��
�������
������	 ������ �������������������
��������
��������
���������������
	����� ���-��	��
������������������$�����������	������ ������9<�����0����������������	����
��������
��

������$�����������	������ ���������$�����������	�����
��������������9<�����0�������
���������
����������������
�$�����������	�������
�������
�$�����������	�����
������������������
�������
�����
��������
������������������������������
����������2
����"
������0�:&�����
�
����
��
���������������������� &������������������(
���!=#��
�����������������������
������
������ >�!4#��
�����
�������������
��������������
�������������� >�����!:#��
�����
������
���
��������
�����������
�������
�������������� ������
�
����
��
������������������������� &��
��������������(
�������������
�
��������������	�����
���
������������
�������
�����
�������������������
�������
���2
�
Page 34 of 76



��

�������	�	�
���	���	���������������	���
�	��������
�����	
�	
�����
�����������������
���	���������	������������������������
���������������	������������������	��
�������	�	���	��������������������	�	�
���������
��	��	��	�����������	������
�������	������������������	������������������	����������� �	�	��!���
�������������������
������
��"�
����"	�����������	�	���	���	
�	���	�	����������������#���������	�	���	���$�����%�"������
�	�������������������������������
������������	����������������������
����&�	�����
������	
�' (���#� )*+�������� �	�	��!���
����	"���#������,��	����	���#���
�"�����������������#�
	
��������	�	
���	"����
�
��������������� �������� ����	�����"	��������������������	���������������
�
����������
�"�������
����������������������
�
��	���#�������������������	�	���	���$�����%�"������
��	��	������,��	�������� �	�	�
���������
��	������������	��������

������)*�***�
�����#��������������������������	�����	�������������	�������	�	�
���������
���������$	�	���	������	�	���	���$�����%�"������
���������	���������� �	�	��!���
��������������"��#��������������������	�����������	������������	��������

������)*�***������	
�������$	�	���	������	�	���	���$�����%�"�������
�����#����	
�	#�����������	�	���	��������	�
�	�������������	������	����-����#�"������ .�������	�	���	������������	��������������������������"��	�
�
����������������������� ���	����	���	��	
�������������� ����	����������	�	/����	
�
�����������#����	��������	�	���	���$�����%�"������
��	��	��������������	���,��	�������
	
������	�����������"�������
�
�
��������	��.��	#	����������	�	���	���$�����%�"������0
������	������������	�
��������	������ �	�	��!���
�
�������������������������������	��
�����

��������	�	���	���$�����%�"����������	�	�
�	�
��
����	"�� ��������	
���1�������	�	���	���$�����%�"������������
����������	�
��������	���������� �	�	��!���
���������	�	���	���$�����%�"�������
�����#������
���������������	����&�	�����
�
��������	����	
�������������� ���	�	���	���$�����%�"������
���������	"�����	��������������	���	��������	
���	����"�������
�������	
�	#��	���������	��������	������ �	�	��!���
����"	�������� �	�	��!���
�����
���
�������������"�������
�
��,��
���#������	�	
���	"����
�
���������	�	���	���$�����%�"�������������	�	
���	�
��������	������ �	�	��!���
�
�������������������������
�
���)*+�����������	�	���	���$�����%�"������0
��������	������ �	�	��!���
����	���"��	
���

����� ��$�����%�"����������������
�
��������#�����������	�	���	���$�����%�"��������	����������	"�����	�����������	������ �	�	��!���
���������	���������� �	�	��!���
��������������"��#�������������������$�����%�"������������	
����������	�	���	���$�����%�"�������
�����#��
Page 35 of 76



��

��������	
���������������������
������������������������������������	�������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������� ����������!����� "����������������������������	��������������������
������#������$
���������� %��
��������������������
�������������
����&	�������
��������������������#������$
������������������������������ '����������������� �����������������
������#������$
������������������
������������� ����������������������������������
������#������$
������������������
������������ '����������
�������������(�
�����������������������������������	
���������#������$
���������������������������� '����������������#�������������
	���������	�������������������#������$
������������������������������	
����������)������
�������� ������������������	
��������#������$
���� ��������������������'�������(���������������������������������
������	�������#�������	���������
�����*#��+������������#������$
�������������������	
�������)������
�����������
��������
������(���#������	�������)���������������	����������	����� �	����������������
�����������)��
����������	�����������������,#-����� (���#���������������������'�����������	���������������������������������	������������������
���������������������(� ������������� ����������'�������(��������������������������	���������������������� ���������� ���������� ����	�������������	����������������'�����.�������������������������������������������� ����������������#����
������� ���������
��������)�������������������������������������������-������/� (���'�������#��� ����	����������	���������������� ����������!����� #����������������	
��������#������$
������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������'��������������������
����������
Page 36 of 76



��

���� �����	�
�����������������
��
���
����
�����
���������������	���
����������������������		�����������������
�����	�������������
�������
����������������
��������������������� �!���	������������� "�������������
����
���������������	�#���
������������������
��������
��		������������������$����%���&�'�����
�������
���� �����
�����	��( ���
���������������	�#���
��������
��������� ��
��������������)���
���������������$����������������		�����������������&��'��*�
�����������+
�������������
�(�����������$�������
�����( ���
���������������	�#���
��������
��������� ��
�����������
�����	���
�����
�����( �������)����&���'����������
����������������������
���
�������		���)�������������������
�(�����������������$����������� ����
�����������,������(	��	 �����	�(	���		���������������������$�����		�����������	��������-�����
�(��������������������
���( �������)��
���
���	 �( ���
���������������	�#���
������������ *���	����������������������������
�	�.�����(	�������(��
���
�����
�
�������
 ���
�������(	��������������������
��������
����� ���
���������������	�#���
�����������
���������������$����-�������
����������
���( �������)����������		��������������-������������		�����������	����������		 ������� "���������
 -�
�/��
����������		����������������	��������0
�	�����������
�����
���������������	�#���
�������������	�����������������������$����-������		���
���������������	�#���
����������		�����	 ����������
�/��
�������������� 1��
��������	������( ���
���������������	�#���
������������������		���������������
���
������		��������	�
�����&2'������������$�������
����
�������
�������
�&3'�����	 �����
���
�����
�/��
���������4�� ��
���������������	�#���
��������� ���
��������	����������
�-����	-��
���		�(�
������������
�
�����������		������������������$���������� ������
���� ��������( �������������������	���
������-����	���������������
���-����	���-��
���		�(�
����������������
����
�������
��������������	��������������
��������������������� �!���	���������
Page 37 of 76



��

��� ����	
��	
���	������������������������
����
������	�	���	
�������������
��
�����	���������������	�����
����	��� �����!�����	
��
���"���	�����	�����#�	
���������	��������	������$������	�	���	
�������������
��
���������������
��
��������	�
�"�������"����
����	�	��%�
���"�����
��"������$	
�	
��&�������
���	����
��������������������	����&������'��	
�����	�	��
���"������������������
��
���	
�����&������"�(���	
���
���)�� *"��
������	�	���	
�������������
��
���	���������������
��	������	����"����	����������	�
��"���	�	��%�
��!���������	�	���	
�������������
��
��������������	����������	����+'��	��	
��	,���-�./�������"��	������	
������	
"�����	�
��
�����	
�������	�������%�	��������������	����+'��	��	
���	���	���"�����������
�����
��	���������	�����"���������	�	���	
�������������
��
�����	����������0���������
���"��
����"	�	�
���	
�	����������	�
��"���	�	��%�
�����1�� *"��
���+'���
������������������	�	���	
�������������
��
�����,��
�	������"�	����������	�
��"���	�	��%�
����	��
�����������	�������+������������������	�����	
�2,�	$	��+!���������������"���	����!�����������������	�	���	
�������������
��
��������	����	������	����������	�
��"���	�	��%�
��!������+'�������0�������	������	�
����	
����������������""�
�	
������	�	���	
�������������
��
���&���������	������	�
�	����"����������	�����	�
��"������+'��
������	
�������	������	
��"��������	�	��%�
����������������""�
�	
������	�	���	
�������������
��
�������3�	�	
�������""�
�	
������	�	���	
�������������
��
�������	�$�����	�����������,��
������	�	��%�
���$��0���������+'����$����4���������������������	
	
������	�	���	
�������������
��
����	��	
������ ��	�
���5�� +�������	�	���	
�������������
��
����
���+'���������	
��	
��������������������������������	����
���,��
�	������"���	�	��%�
���"���
����������
�"	���-6/��������
����������0������������������	��$���"������	���$���
������������	�	���	
�������������
��
������+'!����������$�	��� ���������3�������$��������$�	��������$�����������	
��������
����	���(���	
���
�����$�	�� �������+��� '(�78�6��..9�:;�<:=�� ���������3�������$���
����������	�	���	
�������������
��
������
��+'�������$������������	��	
����
��4�
��-89/�������"�����������������������3�������������	�����>�	����3�	����
�������
���������
���
������	�	���	
�������������
��
������+'����$�	���	�
���
����(���	
���
�����$�	�� �������+��� '(�78�6��..9�:;�<:=���?@ABCDEFG�HI�JHKFLEM�BFN�OPGPQBGPHF�RSTEFLEL��9� >����	�	���	
�������������
��
��������	
������������
�����"�����
���	�	���	�
��,��
���������	
��������	����������	�
��"����	������	
�����������������	����&������'��	
�����	�	��
��!��
����	����������	�
�����	
������������$�
�"	���"���������	�	���	
�������������
��
����+�����	
���!���(���	
���
�
Page 38 of 76



��

������	��
����������������������������
��������
��
���������
��
��������
����
��
�����������������������
����
��
��
������	��
�����������������������������
���������
��
�������	��������
�
�������	����
����� ������!��������
������
�"��������������#��
����
����������
���
����������$��
���
������
�
���%��&% '����	���
����
�����������������������������#�(�
��������
����������
�����
�����������������)����
��*+,����
���
�
�����������������
�������������%��-% '���	���	�	�������
��������������
�����������������	��
����	�

��������	�����
�������������*+,����
������
�������
��������������������
��
��
���.�
���
����.�����������	��
�
��
���������
��
��
������
�����������������	��
"����������������

����
�����
��
��
�.�
���
����.�����������	��
%�/������������	�
������	�����������������
�	���������
��#��0����������������.�
���
����.�����������	��
�
�����
�#����������
�����
�������������	��
�#�
��
��
�.�
���
����.�����������	��
%��1% ���	��
�����	�
��������������������������������		�

����
�����������������2�������!�		�

�����������
�������������������
�
�������
��������#������#����	�(�����3������4������0�.%.�%5�����6������7��	��� ����� �������..�5�������������8�6��0�4�
��4��9��"��..!5�������:������ �0����0��..!%��'�����������
����������������2�������!�		�

��������������	�
��
�����������
��
�
�����������	����
�����������������#�
��
���� ��
���%����+% ;��
�������
�
��
���

���������	����
����� ������!��������
������
������
�����
�����������������������
������
�����
����.�����������	��
������
����
�
���
�	����

��	��
�����������"����	��
��
�����������������
�����
����.�����������	��
�����������	������	�
��������������
�	����
����
����������"�#�
��+<,�����#�
����*&�	��
������
����
����� �

��	��
����&+,������������������)���
�����"�����
�
���
�	��
���
�
��� �

��	��
��	���
��������
��
���'���
������
���=������
�"�#������������������%��>% ?����������	����������
�������������������(�����
����	���
�������
��������.�
���
����.�����������	��
�@������
���������@����������
�
���������	��
�"���������
����	���
�������
��������
�����		���������
�
�������������� ��
����!%A�����#�������
���������
������
���=������
�����������
����#�
����
������

��	��
���"������������
�
��
������
�����
����.�����������	��
��BCD�CEFE����������
��
���������
�������
����
�����2�����
��7"�
�������������?���������������������
����
���������������2�����
�?%��G% ;��
�������
�
��
���������
�������������
����������
�
����������������������������#�������
���� ��
���"����	��
��
������������������.�
���
����.�����������	��
����������������������BCD�CEFE������%�'���.�
���
����.�����������	��
��#������
���������������������������
������������	���
�%�
Page 39 of 76



���

�� ����	
�����
����
�����
��
��������������������������������������������
�����������������
 !�����������������������"#�$%&�'()*+#(,�-.%/0.*1)*+#�21*()%�3*)*4()*+#5�6�����7�
����8������9�������������:��������8������������5�9
���:���;<;=>��>?@�?A>8B	�C�9������D�������
 !E��F������������5�����	
����
��G�H��
��I�������������
�����������J�����
�������������G�������
�����
������9������D�������
 ��F������������G�������
�����������
G��������
������9������D�������
 5����������9������D�������
 ���
�������
����������������������
�������������G
��G�
������>��G
��G�H��
��I�����������������
��������
�����������������
����
����
�����������������������������	
����
��G�H��
��I������������F��������������
��I���������������� �
����������
������H�G
��G�H��
��I����������K����
����������K�����������
����
G��������5�� �����������������I�����
������
����������
������9������D�������
 �C��
��E���LMNOPOQRS�TOQUV��;� F��
���	
����
��G�H��
��I������������������
�������	
����
��G�H��
��I���������5�����������G�����W�G��
��B�
�������B�������9������5����
���������������������X�65�����
���G�G�	
����
��G�H��
��I�����������
�����J�����������������������������X�6��������������������
���
����
����7���������C�E��
���������5�������������
���G�G�	
����
��G�H��
��I���������������������������
���G����������G�	
����
��G�H��
��I�����������������������
���G������
���C�E�
���
���
���
���������������������������
���G������
���C�E��F�������
��������������
����5�
���
���G�G�	
����
��G�H��
��I�������������
���G����������G�	
����
��G�H��
��I�����������
�������������������������������������������������
�����
��������Y
���G�����
�����@� :����G�������X�6���
���������������������
��������G������
���	
����
��G�H��
��I����������������J�����
���������������������������G�������������������������X�6���
�����
����
���Y
���G�����
���F�������
��
����5�����
���G����������G�	
����
��G�H��
��I���������5�������G�����W�G��
��B�
�������B�������9������5��
��������������������������������������������������
�����
��������Y
���G�����
���F���������������
��������5�
���	
����
��G�H��
��I���������5�������G�����W�G��
��B�
�������B�������9�������
������X������5��
�����J�����������������
��������������������
G
���������
��
����������Z� [���������
�����G
��
��������
�����������X�6���
�����������������������������	
����
��G�H��
��I���������������
���������
�����
�������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������� �
������������������������������A� ����X�6��
������ �����������������������������
���5��
�������������
�������������
����G�
�5�����
�������������
�����������������
��������
������������������	
����
��G�H��
��I�����������
�����������������������������G�
����������� ��������������X�6��B���������������������G�
������
Page 40 of 76



���

���������	
����������������
���������
�����������
��������������������	����
���
�����������	����������
����
�����������
�����������
���������������������������
����
���
������������������
������
�������������������
�����
�����������������	� 
����!
��������	����
���
�
�"�����
�������������������
�����������������
���
����������
������
��#�
�����������
���
����������
����
�����#�
�����������
���
�����
�����������	���������
�����	�����#�
�����	�
�����������������������
������
���
��������
�����	������
�������������
��������
��	�����
���
�����
����
��	������$� ����������������	� 
����!
����������������������������
������������������
�����
��%������������������	� 
����!
������&���'�����
�
������������������������
���������������������
���	�	��
�������������������������
��%����
��'�����������������()*+,-./*0�12�3,4*�5.6*.6-1.,778�9*26�:7,.;�<�=-4.,6>0*�3,4*?�@1771AB

Page 41 of 76



���

������	
������	��	��
����	��������	�
����	��	��
��

	������	��	���	���������
�������	
������������������������������������������ ���!�"�������������������������������������������������#��
�$�����
��������������������������������������	�!
��������������������������������������������
%&'%())*+(+,-%.�/0�1

Page 42 of 76



������������
Page 43 of 76



��

��������������������	�
���
���	����	�����	�
�����
������������������������ 	�
�	���������
������
������������ !"�"!#$"%#&"� '���( ()�*+#�,(+ !)#!�-�*,.�$&)�$&/�0 1 00�!!(&2���3+"$&0#�*+#�,(+ !)#!� !��#&"$4�5#$4"6�-�*,7�5.�0 &)("( &+8�0 1�+$2#8�$&)7 !�0 1$))(0"( &�"6! �26�#9()#&0#13$+#)8�#9()#&0#1(&' !%#)8� !��! %(+(&2��! 2!$%+� !�+"!$"#2(#+�"6$"�%$/�(&04�)#8�3�"�$!#�& "�4(%("#)�" 8�"6#�' 44 :(&2���;�<�$&)�$9$(4$3(4("/� '�"!#$"%#&"�' !��*,�$&)�$&/�0 1 00�!!(&2��*,7�5�0 &)("( &+8�0 1�+$2#8�$&)7 !�0 1$))(0"( &8�(&04�)(&2�$44�' !%+� '��#)(0$"( &1�++(+"#)��!#$"%#&"�-���.�$��! 9#)�3/�"6#�*;�;�=  )�$&)�,!�2��)%(&(+"!$"( &;�>;���� !"�$&)�!#(%3�!+#�+#!9(0#+�"6$"�(&04�)#�"6#�'�44��%#!(0$&�� 0(#"/� '��))(0"( &��#)(0(&#�-����.�0 &"(&��%� '�0$!#�' !��*,�$&)�$&/�0 1 00�!!(&2��*,7�5�0 &)("( &+8�0 1�+$2#8�$&)7 !�0 1$))(0"( &8�(&04�)(&2�3�"�& "�4(%("#)�" ��$;�#)(0$"( &1�++(+"#)��!#$"%#&"�-���.?�3;�3+"(&#&0#13$+#)�"!#$"%#&"?�0;�!#$"%#&"8�!#0 9#!/8� !� "6#!�+#!9(0#+��! 9()#)�3/�+"$"#+8�+�3)(9(+( &+8�0 %%�&("/�6#$4"6�0#&"#!+?�& &1' !1�! '("��! 9()#!+?� !�' !1�! '("��! 9()#!+?�);�!#$"%#&"�3/��! 9()#!+�"6$"�' 0�+� &��*,�"!#$"%#&"�$+�:#44�$+�"!#$"%#&"�3/��! 9()#!+�"6$"� ''#!��*,�"!#$"%#&"�$4 &2�:("6�"!#$"%#&"�' !� "6#!��*,7�5�0 &)("( &+8�0 1�+$2#8�$&)7 !�0 1$))(0"( &?� !�#;�9()#&0#1(&' !%#)�!#+()#&"($4�+#!9(0#+��! 2!$%+8�$+�& "#)�3#4 :;�@;�<�$&)�"#4#6#$4"6�" �(&0!#$+#�$00#++�" �"!#$"%#&"�' !��*,�$&)�$&/�0 1 00�!!(&2��*,7�5�0 &)("( &+8�0 1�+$2#8�$&)7 !�0 1$))(0"( &8�(&04�)(&2����8�$+�:#44�$+�0 �&+#4(&28��+/06($"!(0�+��� !"8�$&)� "6#!�"!#$"%#&"�$&)�!#0 9#!/�+��� !"�+#!9(0#+;�A;B%�! 9#� 9#!+(26"� '���( ()��!#$"%#&"��! 2!$%+�-���+.�" �$++�!#�#9()#&0#13$+#)8�#9()#&0#1(&' !%#)8� !��! %(+(&2��!$0"(0#+�+�06�$+�$)#C�$"#�%#"6$) &#�) +(&2;�D;���� !"�% 3(4#�(&"#!9#&"( &8�"!#$"%#&"8�$&)�!#0 9#!/�+#!9(0#+8� ''#!#)�3/�C�$4('(#)��! '#++( &$4+�$&)�+#!9(0#��! 9()#!+8�+�06�$+��##!�!#0 9#!/�0 $06#+8�' !��#!+ &+�:("6��*,�$&)�$&/�0 1 00�!!(&2��*,7�5�0 &)("( &+8�0 1�+$2#8�$&)7 !�0 1$))(0"( &�$&)�' !��#!+ &+�:6 �6$9#�#<�#!(#&0#)�$&� �( ()� 9#!) +#;�E;���� !"�"!#$"%#&"� '�%#&"$4�6#$4"6�"!$�%$�!#+�4"(&2�'! %�"6#�"!$�%$"(0�#<�#!(#&0#+� '�"6#� �( ()��+#!�-#;2;8�9( 4#&0#8�+#<�$4�$++$�4"8�6�%$&�"!$''(0F(&28� !�$)9#!+#�06(4)6  )�#<�#!(#&0#+.�$&)�'$%(4/�%#%3#!+�-#;2;8�+�!9(9(&2�'$%(4/�%#%3#!+�$'"#!�$&� 9#!) +#�
Page 44 of 76



��

������������	
�
������
�����
�����	���
�����
��������������������	��
���
��������������
��
�����������������	�
������������
��������
�
���
�
���������������	����������������� �
���
�����!����������� "#$�������������!��
����
��"�����!
��������������������
�����������	���
��������
���������������������������������������������������%�����������
�������#&'�	�����
�����
���������������������������������������������	�����
���������
������������������
����������������������
�������
������������������������������
�������������!(
������������������
�����������������
��
���)������������*	�����������������	���
����������	�����
����������*������������������� �
���
�����!����������� "#$�������������!��
����
��"�����!
��������+,�-������	����������	���
������������������
�����	����������
������
����������������
�������
������
����	������
��������++�-������	������
�����
����	�������
�������(�
��
��
��������������	����
�� ����&�������'��
������&����	��,,,�� &'&��,,,�����������(��#&'�	����� ��
����������������
��
����
����
������	�����
�����������������
��������
����(�
����
� &'&��,,,��
�����+��������������������
�����	���(!(
������
�����������
�������
������&����
��&�
������	�&�������-����
���.��-�������/���
����������������!��������(!(
������
��������������
�������
���
�������������+0��������������������������
���������
�����	������������
�������
������&����
��&�
������	�&�������-����
���.��-�������/���
�����������������	���#���
���!&�������'��
�������12 3455678�5965:9�;<�879=8>9<8�=<?�79@6A97B���������������������
������	���
������������	������ �
���
�����!����������� "#$�������������!��
����
��"�����!
����������������������!(
������������!�	�����������������������
���������
��������
���
����������(���
���������������������	�������C�+�-����������	��������������	��
����	������������������	����� �
���
�����!����������� "#$�������������!��
����
��"�����!
�����������������������������������������
�����
�����������
��������������������������������������
������������������������
��
�������
����
�
��������
�������������������������!(
���������������-���������������������!�������������������
����
�
�������
����������
�����
����������
�������������
�����	������������������������������������� �
���
�����!����������� "#$�������������!��
����
��"�����!
���������
Page 45 of 76



��

�������	
����
����������������
���
������������	����������������������������	����� �������
 ���	��������		������ ������	������������
������� ��
���
��������� ��������������
�������! �����������������������������	
���"������	
���!!�������������
����
 ������	������������	��
����
����
 �����������	
�������������#�����
���������������	����������������������������	����� �������
 ���	��������		��������$������������
%���	��

���
���
����
��
� �������!��������	
������������� �������
�
�� ���!���
�����
 �������
��
����
������
���������������	����������������������������	����� �������
 ���	��������		��������&������	
�
!����!
���������������
	����������
����
������
���������
��!
�����������
���
������!�������	����������������������������	����� �������
 ���	��������		��������'�(	
���������
�����
���
���������!��������������� ������ ���	�����
�
��
���
���������! ���	������	
����������	��
��������������
��������
�
���
���!)
����	������������������*�������������!�����
������
�����
���
����+�,����
����������� �������)�
	���!!�����
 ���	���!!���������������������������
���
������
��!
�����	��
���
�����	�������������!����!
!)
�������
���
���������!����
���
������	��
�������
���!�����-������	
������������	�	
�
���!
����������
	��
��������
��!
���������������������
������
�������	������	
���������	����
��
����
��������
�����	��
���
����������	��
� ������	�����
	���������!���./������������!���
	�������
�������
���	������
��!
�����	�������������
������������ ������	�����
	��������
����!�����
��
����
���
��!
����01 0233405�642674�892�344:�9476�52�594�9476�594;�344:�<0233405=23>�52�0?@4A������	
�����
������������
������
���
��������
�B������
������C����	
�
�������B�������	����������������������������	����� �������
 ���	��������		���������������
��	
��
�)�
	 �
��	
��
������!
	 �������!�����������!��������
��
������!��������	
 �)�����
�������!��
	��� ���
����������D�.�,���
�������
��������
������	
����
���

���������������	����
����C����������	�C���������������������
�������
����	���
���E����
�
������
�
���F�������
�������������
��!
����G������������

���� �H��
��(��
��
��������	�I
�
��������J�
��!
���E�H(IJF�������!�����
	��
���
��������������!��
����	���	
����������	
������������	�������
�!��!��
!
������������H(IJ����C
����
!�E�
���� ������ �����
�
 ����!�����K����
 ���	����)�����F ������������������������	��������	������
���������������!�!��
���������	�	���	
������!!����
Page 46 of 76



��

�������	
��	���	�������
��
���������	���
�������������
�
����������������������������	�������������������������
��������	��������������
���	�����
����
����
��	������	��������������������������������	�
���� !������������	
���	�	���������
������
������
��"���������
���	������	�
���	����	�
��������
�
�#����$%&�	���	���������������%&' (��������
�����
	����	��'����	��������������
�
�#���	����)����������	�����������
�������������������	����������������
������
��������	�*���������������
����	��	���	����+�����������
�
�
�	*���,	����������
���	��
�����	
�	��	�����	��������
���	���������������	������
�������
�
�#����$%&�	���	���������������%&' (��������
�����
	����	��'����	�������������
�
���	���	����)����������	�����������
���-������������#�.���/��������� ����	����
���
�����������������
������
����	��
�
�������������������	�
������	�������������	������	���
������
����#����	�����������
�����������������	����	����
���������0������������������������
������
����	��
�
������������	���
�����������������	������
�����)��	�������
����������������
������������
�������
����	��
������
1������
������
��
�����
������������
����	��������
�
�#����$%&�	���	���������������%&' (��������
�����
	����	��'����	���������������
�
�#���	����)����������	�����������
���23�������������������������	���	��
�����������	���
���	��������	��
�����	����	�	���
���	�������	

�
�	���������
�
�#����$%&�	���	���������������%&' (��������
�����
	����	��'����	���������������
�
�#���	����)���������������������
���22�4��	�����
������
����*	
������	��
���	���	����
��	�����	���#������
��.�������	������	������
������
���������������1�	���
���������������������������������	�������	���������������	�
����
�����������������25�&������	���
������*�
����	�����
���	����

����$%&��������#�.��	����26��������	

�
�	��������	�
������	�����	����������
�#����$%&��2��/��	�����������
�	��������	�������������	
�	�
�
������
����������	���������	�������2��������������	��,����	���������
���	��������������	����	�����������
���	������	���
������
�	���
�����
�������
�
�#����$%&�	���	���������������%&' (��������
�����
	����	��'����	���������2"�4��	�����
���������	.��	����	���������
����	�����	�������	����	���	���

������	������������������	�����������
������
�������
�
�#����$%&�	���	���������������%&' (��������
�����
	����	��'����	���������
Page 47 of 76



��

�������	
��
�����
���������
��	���������������	���	�����	�������
���������	�����������
��		��������	���������� ����������	����������
����������	���	
����
��!
���������	������	��	����"������������
��"��������#$����������������������������������	��
�������	"���������������
�� �
���%������������&' (&&)*++�,-*�.**&+�/0�1)232.(4567+,21*52.8/48*&�9*)+/.+����������������
!����
�� ����#$�����������
"
���������:$��;<��
�����
�=��
"����=�����
���
"�������
�� �
��������
	������
�����������%�
!����
��������
	��������������������	�>��������������
������������"����=���������"��!
����=�
����
��������
�����
�����������������������	���=����������
��	��������
=�����!
		
 ���?���:���
������"������
���
�"������������
��������!	����
�����������!
�����
�� ����#$�����������
"
���������:$��;<��
�����
�=��
"����=�����
���
"�������
�=����	����������	�������������������?���:�	!"��!����	������������������������	�@�
�����
������@
	�����������������
��A��
�����B����������C@��ABDE����������
�������������������������������������A��
��������C��A�D��
��	E���F��	
G
���@	�H���������=� ����� 
�%��
���������������������	� �
�����������������	
G
����
�������������!!����
!����
����
�����������	��%����
�������������
�����
��
���������
�������������E���#!!�������������
����������=�����������I� �J�!
��������������������
��CIJ��D��
��	E���#!!���������������
���������������������I�
���
����=�K	
��������	������	�������
����� 
�%�
������������
�L����������
����������
���
�����������B���������E��!��
"���
���������
���	�������������
������
��	��
�������#$�"��	�����M�����		� ������������:$���G������������
���������������������������
������� ����	� ���!
��������M������
��E�
�����
�������
�����
��������
����
����=����	������������
��
!!������	���=�
�	��!
���
������ �������
��	���
��
!��N=NNN�
��	�������������
����������������������
	�����
��
����������	���������������=��
���
����=�
�������������O�:���
������"����	��������������
���������������	� ����#$�����������
"
���������:$��;<��
�����
�=��
"����=�����
���
"�������
���
���������"��!
��������������=����	������;��=�������	�������������P�:���
��������������������
������
����!
�����
�� ����#$�����������
"
���������:$��;<��
�����
�=��
"����=�����
���
"�������
�=�����
�	���!�������
������
�������!����	��
���������"��!
��������������=����	������;����
Page 48 of 76



��

������	
����	
����	������
������������	���
	�����������������������������������������	��������	������	�
	�	
������	���� !���
�����������	���" !#�$���
	�	����������������
#������

	�	�����������	��������
�	��%�	�������	�����&�����	
����	
����	������
������������	���
	�����������������������������������������	��������	������	�
	�	
������	���� !���
�����������	���" !#�$���
	�	����������������
#������

	�	���������������	���%�	�������	����������������������%�	�������	���������������'��	��������������������
��������	��������	����������	�	�����������	�������������������������	�	�	������"��������	�	����	���	��������	����()�*+������	�����������	�
	�	
������	�	����	���
����
	�����	��� !#���	�����������	����������
�����	�������	�
	�	
�������������	���
	�����	�,����
�����	�����
����
��	�,�������������������������	���������	�����-�����	
�����	�	������'��������	��������

����	����������
������	�	����%���	��	������
����������	���� !���
�����������	���" !#�$���
	�	����������������
#������

	�	���������������������������	���������%�
		�����������������������	
��������������������������������������������������������	���������
�	�������	����	���������������������	���
���	'�
�	����	�����	����./ 0112.33�45.�6..13�78�92.:6064�72�902.64;6:�<7=.6�061�45.;2�80=;>;.3?�;6@>A1;6:�B0B;.3�<;45�6.76040>�0B34;6.6@.�3C6127=.���

������������
�����������������������	����������	���� !���
�����������	���" !#�$���
	�	����������������
#������

	�	������
��������
��������	�����	�	����	���
	���'�'	����	�������������'��	��������
����������������	
����'���
����	
����	������
���������	�	����������������������	������������	���
���'������������	�	��
���������������	��D�E�"���������	
����'���
����	
����	������
���������	�	��������������	���
	��������������������	�����
�������������
��������	�������	����������������������F�����������������
�'��������������F����������� !���
�����������	���" !#�$���
	�	����������������
#������

	�	������
��������������������
�������
�����	
����������������	�	���������
�'��G���������'��	�����"��
������H�����	
�����	�	��������'�����		�����������������������������������������,��	��������������������
����	�����	�	��������
	����������������� !���
�����������	���" !#�$���
	�	����������������
#������

	�	����I�����	
�����	�	���������������������	
�����������,��	���������������������	������������'��������	�����������	�����	�����
�������J�	��������������	�
����'�����	���G���������'��	�����"��
����������������
�����������	��������	�����
����	�����������������������������	
��������
��������������	�
������
����	������'����������	��������������������������

	�	���	���������	��K���
��������������	������
�'����	���������������������������
�������	�
���
���������
Page 49 of 76



��

���������	
�	��������������������	�
������������������	������������������	�����
������	��	������������	������ !���	����	�"���������"��	�������������	"��	����	������	�����������������	���#���������	�	���$�������������%
����	&�����������'�(�	������	����������	���	���������"��	����	�������������
����	���	���
��������	�������������"�������	������
����	����	���������������
��
�����	�����������	���������������������������������������)*+,�,-�.�)+/0/1,2�1�34 567879:� ;876<567=>6?@?9A� B9C� 79=D67� B556;56?B:7�567=>6?@?9A�B9C�C?=579=?9A�;3�;5?;?C=�������������������������	����������������	���	��	��������������������������	���	�����	��	�������������
����
�����	�������"�����	����	�����"�����������	��������������������������
��������	����"���������	������������"��
���������	�.�E�,���	�	������
����
���������������������	��������	������	���������������������	�"����	�"��	�������	�������	���������������F�*����������	����������	�������������������������	����������������������������	���G�%�	��	��	�� ������/������	�H% /I��	����������������������	�������������J�������������	�	����������	��������	�������	������"��	����	������	�	������������������������������������������"�����	����	�������������	��������	�������������	
�	����	���������������	������)����������	������ �	�����	��)��������H)� )�I"��	����	������	����������������������	����
��.���2	��������
��	������������������������	��)� )�K���2����������	����������������	���#�	������	������	���
��L��	����"�L������"����������������������������������������������	��)� )���������������	���
���	���������
�����������������������������)� )����"�������
K������/	�������������������)� )������	���������������������	�������	�����	���	�����������"��	����	�� *,������������	����������������	����������	���������
�	�)� )����������#��������M�����	��������$����������	���	��������	�����	������	����	���)� )�'�(�	���������	������������������	����	���)� )��
������������	��������	��
���	���
����������	�������������������������	��
���	�������������
����
��	��������	"��	����	������	������������.���2	��������	����)� )��������
��������	���
����
�������"����������������"��	�������	�������������������
����
���������������������	����������
Page 50 of 76



��

������	
��������
���	��	�������
���������	�������������������������������
�����
���������
��������������	������� �!	�����	���
��"�����	���������
����!����
�
������	���������������#�$��	����������	��
���	���	
�
�������	�������
��	�
����	� �	��	�������������
������	��������	��	
������
�
���
�����
�����%& '()*)+,�-./0/)�12�1'.1.3/������	���  �	�������
����	�����	��	�������
������ ���
�
�����	�������
�����4���������
�����4
� �	������	��	��
�
����	��	�����	���	����
������������
�������������	�������
�
������������ ����5
��6�7�8�		���
�������	�
�
����	��  
	���
�������
��������
��������
���������������
�������9�����
��������
���	����
�������	����
��������:�	�����;�4���;��
��������	�����	���
����	��	�����<�=����������
������
4�	�������
�
����������������
���	����	�����
����  �	����>������	��������
�������
�
����
��
��������
�����
�����4
� �	�����	�����
������������	����������
������������������
��������������
����	�����
���?�
�����
������  
����������
����������
����������	�� �	��������
���	���������	�	�����	����	��	�
�
���� �����
�
����
����
�����4
� �	����
����������
����
�����
���������	����
���	�����
���=	���5�	;���������������������������������@����������������A��������	�
����@��
�
��	��
���B�@�A�@C��D�����������4�	� 
������� �
��4������������
�
����������������������	���	�����
����#������	����
�����4
� �	���������������������
���������
����	��	�������������
���� �	����������� ��
�
�����������������������������������
���	��	�������	���4������	������������������
��
�������������	�����������4�������	������4 ��������	��	�����	���	����
��������������������	������  ���
�������
���	�����
����	����
���������������
;�����������  ���
���
���	�����
�����������;����������� ���
�
����E������	��������
��4������������
����	�
���	����
�����	�
���� �	� ��
�
������������������������������	
�;� �	�F������������4����		
�������A�����
�
�������4������������	���4���
��
����7G������	����
�����4
� �	�����	��	�����	���		
�����������	������������������������� ��������������5�������������	
�;�� ��
���
�����
�
����	�����	��	�����
�����
�������
������������
�������	��
�
������;
�����77������	���	����	���������������������������	�
�������������	��� �	���������������
�����
�����	�
�������������	����	��
����������������	�����	�����	�����������  �����
Page 51 of 76



��

����������	
�������
��	�����	����	���������
��
�����	�	�
���������������������	�������
�������������������
������������������ ����� !�"���#"$��#�%!�$�% #�"!�����%�&$�'�����
������
��
�����(�	
������������(����������
�������
��������)����
���������
��������(��	��)*����+��(��	��)	������+���������	���������������
��
�����
��
�����	�����+�*�
�����	�
���
���
�+�
���������	�,�-�.	��������(���*�
���	����
�*�
�	����	���/�	���	���
����������
��
�
���
��(���������������
������	����+��(���������
�	
�+�����������+���������	�����	����������������+��������+������	
��	�(��
�����	����
�������������+����������	��������	��������������0��1����	+�����
�������*�������
�����	�������*����2�3��(��	�*����*�������
���	

�����������	���/�	��
���	��	��	�
��������	
�+�	����	��*�
�	�
���
���
�����(��	����	
��)	�����	���/�	��	���

	����������
������
�	������	�
��(���*���������������4�5��		���	�������
�	�������	��	���/�	���	���
����������
��
�
���
��(���������������
������	����+��(���������
�	
�+���
�	
��
��	�������+�������+��������+��	���
�������*�������
�����	�������*����6�7	�*����������	�������	���
������������
����
�������	��
��������(�������+��	�����(���
�����
��	���/�	�+�
��		�+��	��������
��8�7/��	�+�����(�+������(�������
��
����	�����
������	��������
�	�������(�������1	���/�	����((�����9�3�*��������
�	�����
	��
��������	��������	����
���(���������:�3�*��������
�	�����
	��
�����	
���	��;����'����
�	�������<�7����
�����
������	�����������	��
����/�
�	����	�������
�	�������	
���	��;����'����
�	���������7/��	���������
��
��
	���	��
���
��	
�����	���
��������������������=.>��	��=���

��?������
	�������	
��(�	��������������-@�'�����
���*����	
��
��
�������������(�������������
��
���
��	
+�����(����������
�+�����
������+�����
������������
�����(����
�������	��
��
�������������������	���
��ABC��	���	����)������	��'BC1D=���	�
�	�+���)�����+��	�1�����)����
�	��--�3��(���
��		��	�
���
��	
��	������(�����
��
�����
������
����������(����+��
���	
�+����������(�����������+�����(������
�������������
�+�����
������������	����
��
����(��������
�������	������������������������	���
��ABC��	���	����)������	��'BC1D=���	�
�	�+���)�����+��	�1�����)����
�	��-2�'�����
������		��������	
�	���	����
	����	����
�/�������
��
	���
Page 52 of 76



���

��������		
����	�������	�	���� ����������������������������������� !"�#$%�&���'(�)*'�&+%���%��,%������$%�")--�(���' �.�//�0��*
��1#)(( �������.)�)( �/�0� �.�(2 ! ��� 3- ����)( "�( /����*�����' ��-����� -�� !�21�41	�)2�� �/�0� �.�(2 ! ����(���' (�.�("��( "-��� ("�( *�(���*��--(�-(��� �-(�2��2 "�����-( 2�)����"�0' ��� �/��*�0��'�. ����5/��(���' (��()*"1�6� 7�8����9��:��78����;�8���<������8������)--�(�� ..�(�"����-(�=�� �/ �� ("'�-%�-/�����*%�����2��(�������������>�� ��' ��-����� -�� !�2��'(�)*'��2��=��� "%�-(�*(�!"%��(�"�(�� *� "��'���!�5���2/)� %�>)���( �����/�!�� ����%��' �.�//�0��*
��1#�!!)���5�( *����/�-/�����*������ ���.5�*��/"�.�(�( �)2��*�'�(!"�( /�� ������' ��-����� -�� !�2%������ ���.5��( �"�����-�-)/�����"�0��'��' �*( �� "���  �"�.�(��( ��! ������ (= ������" (=�2 "%��(����")--�(����' (�"�(�� *� "�����>�� ��' ��-����� -�� !�2�� "2(�> ������'�"��-������>�� ! ���"�(�� *5�/�"�1�41��*�= (�! �����"'>��(������(�2?�? 5��-����@( /�� ������2���("�����")--�(�"��"��� ���.� ���'(�)*'�2�//�>�(���= �2�!!)���5�-(�2 "" "1�,1��= "�������.(�"�()2�)( ��(�"��..��*����*�= (�! ����(����@.�(@-(�.����* �2� "����")--�(��2�//�>�(���= %�2(�""@"5"� !�2��(���������0��'��' �-)(-�" ��.�-( = ����*��= (-( "2(�>��*%��-�����!�")" %��(��-������= (��" "%��( ����*��'�" �0��'��A&�������5�2�@�22)((��*��A&BC��2��������"%�2�@)"�* %����B�(�2�@����2����%�")--�(���*��' !�����( ��! ����(�( 2�= (5%�2��� 2���*��' !����2�( %��(��!-/ ! ����*���' (�"�(�� *� "�����>�� ��' ��-����� -�� !�2�� "2(�> ������'�"��-������>�� ! ���"�(�� *5�/�"�1�D1�(�=�� �( "�)(2 "����"��..�*�= (�! ����= ("�*'������!���* ! ����.��-������>�� ! ���-(�*(�!"1�E� ��8����;������������������' ��(�����*�( . (( ��������=�(��)"��� !"��>�= %�")--�(���(�����*�����>�� ��' ��-����� -�� !�2��'(�)*'��2��=��� "%�-(�*(�!"%��(�"�(�� *� "��'���!�5���2/)� %�>)���( �����/�!�� ����%��' �.�//�0��*
��1�(�=�� �.)����*�.�(�"��..��(�����*��(�� �0�(?��*�-(�*(�!"�����" (=�2 "�����!-(�= ��' �2�-�>�/��5��.�*�= (�! ��%�2�!!)���5%��������@.�(@-(�.��� ����� "�����>�� ��' ��-�����2(�"�"1�41��= "�������.(�"�()2�)( �����"��..��*�.�(�2�//�>�(���= �2(�""@"5"� !�2��(������������-( = ����-�����!�")" %�-( = ����= (��" "%������( ����'�" �0��'��A&�������5�2�@��22)((��*��A&BC��2��������"%�2�@)"�* %����B�(�2�@����2����%��(��!-/ ! �����' (�
Page 53 of 76



���

�������	����
�����������
	
	���	���	�������	����	����	��
	
	����������������������	������������������������	�����������������	�������������������� ���� �!"��#$
���
	
	������������������������������	���$�����$��	���
���	�	�����
������%
��
&	��'����
�	�
�	�����$�(�	�������������(��$��	
��
%��
�����������������	��������	����	����	��
	
	����������������������	����)�*���������
�+
	
	������������
%����
�	���	���,�*��������
��	��
(������(	������	(����%
���
���	�	����$������#-.*/���������
���������
�	�	����$���	0������$����	��
$���	
���($����������
�
	
	��$����	�
�������1�*��������
��	��
(��	(���$��+�	�����%
���������%%
�����$������	��
(���������	
��
%���	�+���������	(����
%��������	��
	
	����2�30���������������
���&	%�4�����	�4%�	���
������
����$�������������
	
	���	�$���&	��	����	�	����5$��	���
$���	
���������$	���$
���
�	�	�����
������$�����
���������
������$���������������6�&�		�67�3�������8
���)149���:�*��������
���0�������
���	�	����$�����������	�	
��������
�������������0������������
��;/��

Page 54 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	�������	�������� �!"#$%& '()*+,-+./-012�%%"$34$�5%6788"94%:;4887<� 6%#=$�	������	���> '()*+,-+./-01��	����	����� "%4$�!"#$%& '(/*?//?,+,*1� "%4$!8�@A %"$	������	���> '(/*?//?,+,*1����	��	����B7$%"$�!"#$%& )(/,/,,+),?.1B7$%"$�!4%&C7$$7D4=A '(0/)0*0'0*/1E@"  7@94=68�$� '(/-0*--?0)-1<7 %�94=68�$� '('/0?+*'/?'1	������	���> .(0/,'*../*+1F�����	����!678�$�!"#$%& '(-/+/?)//,01!� 6�7@7!678�$G$%4�%37�;7$D"@%6<7$�%=677 '(.?*,+++/?/1	������	���> )('/'+./-?-?1�������	����!8�88���!"#$%& )(+'-*?,+/')1H"@A E"@%��$I787 '(/0?,+-'0.-1J7K#4� 	������	���> )(-*-0+0+?.,1LLL�M�3"=�8�N";7@$�7$%��OO7�@ �4$��#8%4O87�="#$%47 BM)Page 55 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	������	����������� !"#$ %&'(%)**'+,-./�##�0�1� !"2 3&(+4%*,)4'*.��5�6 3&,-)('),*,%.7���0"#0�892:0;90�2<�"= !>0� (&*+3--3'+,'.?�6@ !:�� 3&(,*)+,4,,3.?  2��"2AAAB�= �# 	������	���C -&*4(,3+(%',.	���D���	����� �!5E9��� !"#$ 3&3'-(-))'+*.F�$# "G#��E!=�	������	���C 3&3'-(-))'+*.	H���I�	����� J�9#K�� !"#$ (&*,,-)%'))3.��6#�0�8 =�L���5�L0�6 3&(++((%',*3.7 ":>90J 3&-(-,*+-)3'.?  2��"2AAA	������	���C ,&%*,34,4(-'.M	�N��O�	����F !:��6�� !"#$ 3&+)+,(*'(*'./�92:0P �#� !�00�F�5AAAQ�6#�?0"�#=@00 3&3*))4(34-'.R�"6;90�28 =��S6��"2?�#0�>9��0	������	���C 3&%*+()4-3%3.T�����	����U0��$�� !"#$ 3&(('+%4*))%.80P!E�9=	������	���C 3&(('+%4*))%.AAA�V�7 =���1 >0�"50"#��PP0��6�9"�5!�#9P�0�= !"#906/V,Page 56 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	����������	�������� !"��#$%�&' ()**+,-*.,//0#$��1!!2�3!$&%4514�6�47$ ()/-.8(9+(++0	������	���: ().+*;-;*-,(0���<���=�	����>��?"1!@�#$%�&' ()(*-,;8--(;06$A1�$'	������	���: ()(*-,;8--(;0������	����>���&�#$%�&' ();;*-9.-,+.0#$%!11�#"&'#$%!11�B�ACCCD!17&�"7�#"&'DE3��&�>1$�F1>���@�#$%!11G��&!"�12�%EE5�&&�H�5$414�I� 1 ()-(.8-;*;(;0J%"�7'K$'�!�#"&'L$�E�I� 1M��@1�M"!4$��#�11 	������	���: ,)-(,(8++(.+0
CCC�N�I$7�!�>$O1��A1�&��EE1��4�"��A%!&"E!1�7$%�&"14PN*Page 57 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	�����������	��	�������� �!��"#��$#%&'� ()***+,+*-./01"2�322& ()+,*-4+4...0$# 5#6#78 975�!#:%8�5;<$72���;#&'2 �&#=�>?8772=<2�&�@A#�2 B2 '6#�'	������	���C -)+,/.*4,,D-0�����E�	����F 7�&3�$#%&'� ()G/+(,++G-(0$#%62?8772H�&I72�=�>�!��"#� ()+4--44(,.-0	������	���C ()*..-*D.(,-0J�KK���	��	����L2MM2� #&�$#%&'� (),,-D-.D./(0N#�'�O#P& 2&3	������	���C (),,-D-.D./(0

QQQ�R�H#<�7��#?2�&52&'��662�� �8&�5%7'8672�<#%&'82 SR,Page 58 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	������	��������� !"�#$ %&'()*&)++,,+-./�!�0."1"2�333 4'+,++))*(%)-560"7�.2#8�9�//0�656//6:"6 %'%&44;(+;)&-5/0<=�>�0?!�@5!#A6//333 4'%B+%,4+)%,-5"2�6� 4'4+)4(,+(+%- 02�0#�!� /$@6�C�// !:���#!� 4'4%%B%&**4,->68�D!��68 4'%%)(),*;+,->":0//E�"?</0F333 4'4;&)),B&+,-G6@620/�H0$ 4'&4,%*;++*4-C"�#8�I!��#J880K"0A 4'%B),+*4%4)-�6�?!26 4'4+4***%4+*-�6�# 4';&))&(),),-��2=/0�@ 4';*;&;+;+*,-L0=6�G!268#�I02= 4'4;+;*&(%+*-D0M/6�90//6$ 4'44(&),%;B)-D6@��0D62<62�J8/0�@ 4'%);%)()*B%-D�/#!�333N6F<08#/6 4'44&&%%)BB4-N!2?0�@$�I02=N!2#A�56�@I0<�O�<333P6@?!�@ 4'*B&(*B,44)-P6�#!� 4'),;+,+,(+4-Q0??0?�8A 4'4++*&,(4(4-Q60R0< 4'%*B%;;%+)B-Q60##/6 ,',4&+*4&B%,-QA!26/��6 4'4*&;B&*;4%-Q=$=!?�8AQ�!K"0/?�6 4'4,*(%,**B%-R"=F�/0 4'&4&++4;)&(-H!!@��:�//6 4'4%B;;%,&,*-S022!F�I!��#	������	���T+,'4;4;,;&,4B-333�U�L!<0/�V!:62�?6�#�0MM6028����?"/#�M/6�<!"�#�685U;Page 59 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	��������	������� !"�#$%&�' ()*(+,-..**/01!�&23�456�7 8!&4 9)-.*,*/*9-,0136:63�$& 9)*-+..;,./+0<$3��=3>?!34 9)-99+,+;-*(0<$%8 2$ 9)9;;.;,/(,*0	������	���@ .)A*.A,.+,;+0���������	����������! �#$%&�' 9)./AA;9,*/.0#86�B8%:B886& 2%35 9)9+AA/(,+-A0������! C$ 8'&D$%�?�#86�B8%:	������	���@ 9),/--A(+A+/0���
E�����	�����8�>F��!��#$%&�' 9)((--*;.,A;01�&56&G$846&4!86H?��6�D!8:$&	������	���@ 9)((--*;.,A;0��I���	����J6K� �#$%&�' -)9;;;.;;,;+0#6&�3!8�! 9)-+9+++9.A.0#?6?!8� L$3�$&L$  '3$>FM!"!N�&6<6�B88O$864$P!463H�&8$>F	������	���@ -)(*/;.*;/.(0
QQQ�R�J$>!8�G$N63&:6&��!""6!3 ��&�:%8��"86�>$%&��6 1R*Page 60 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	����
	���	������������ �!�"# $%&'&())*)+,-.�/�01 023"��4152�6�0"7100��8"��9:2331;210:1�<6018!2=��>!0 	������	���? $%&'&())*)+,-@�A	��	����B13��� �!�"# $%C$C**&C$&(-<D2�"�� $%&(E*&'*CCC-	������	���? $%*E(*$*'*$$-FG��	H���	����9I1��81�� �!�"# $%)&+,$+EE+,-J02K3"20 �����!��# �!�22�41/LLLM�/20� �"#N2362�2/9I1��81�9/1I90�5���2O1"20�3;�5203�:2P��13I2"PK�36=��"D0�6	������	���? $%)&+,$+EE+,-Q�
�R�
�	����O1��S��� �!�"# $%+C*,+&)+))-T�K1�����8�J21�D;1#/��:<�!"D�J2�:	������	���? $%+C*,+&)+))-LLL�U����1��V�520�/2�"�1662103����/!�"�6�2���!�"�23JU'Page 61 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	��������������	������� �!"�#$$��%&'�() *+,-../0121*3%'4#567&��8�(9$#��8�(9$#���:9$$4;�<=&"(	������	���> *+,-../0121*3����
��	�����#�"5��%&'�() 0+,/?*?.1*,*3@'A'"�BBB *+*.,C-,,??,3D&���)�E96� *+??2*00/C.13D'56$�)%9"A&�9 &F'�&�(G9(&�H#$$�G I�<&& *+**1C*?.02?3G�'J5$9<BBB *+**********3:#K� *+?2--?C-1C?3:#"5"�4(L#I�M9"A&" *+*C-22.//1-3E96�<&& *+-,-/.1*C2138#$(&�BBB!"(#�I�95#K#5BBB�')9$$'= *+/C1-0*1C?13N&)N'4(&�O&'(P��"9#"#�O(�#$95&&JO'J��" *+?*C/?-0-.23Q95&J9 /+,C?./01.?03R�#H�"4#()��$95� *+*/-/0///./3S#$6�4&�	������	���>?,+*/1-,/.C0*3T���U����	����O9��V'9��%&'�() *+,?*?12-?0?3:"# 9)�M9"A&"	������	���> *+,?*?12-?0?3BBB�W�E&59$�L&H�"�J��(�9==�9"4�#��J'$(#=$��5&'�(#�4DWCPage 62 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	��������	������� !"�#$%&"' ()*+,-*,./-(01&�2$3"45 *)(667/-,/*-08%39!& "$& *)((7-:-(--(0#$&234"4;�<!9"$&=��#$&&43='<�&>$%&"�?43&$& *),:*(*-.--+0�4@3$AB$$994' *)*--((7-.+(0	������	���C ()-/(**+:+770���������	�������<�&!��#$%&"' *)(-.(/.(/,+0D$3"E�8$&&4F!994�"4F4&5$&	������	���C *)(-.(/.(/,+0��	G	��HG�	�����&$E$<!5E�#$%&"' -)/*+77(+-,,0139!& "$& *),-,*+,7*:*08$"E499III *),-+7++:+::083!43J�33!& "$&K@<$&@5 *).*+:/.-**/0KF434"" ()/,+:.-.,7(0L$9@�8�3L3�&!"4�M�995N&@4O=��4��"4F4&5 *)(.:+,*,:/(0='&&P$$@ *)66*7-,/,(70>�3'5F!994 *)./7+*-6:,60>!99�#344� *)(,,6/./+7-0>$&3$4 *)(66(-,(:/:0>$%&"9��4�Q433�24 *),(*:/.+:*+0>%�!9"4$ *),+-(6/*6*,0�&$E$<!5E *)*:-(*/6/-70�"�&P$$@�%9"�&B$$@P�'	������	���C(():,(.*:..:60III�A�=$2�9�L$F43&<4&"��RR4�35�!&�<%9"!R94�2$%&"!458A/Page 63 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	���	�����	������� !"#�$�%"&' ()(*+,-(.+.+/0123!'�4#156&7$6#"#' 8)9+,-:(:,:./;##2�<!2 =!12>1#?@A!&!6A1B#2&'�A! # 8)8,-.*,*(9./C#@1D!?�A! #C1??3��@E�D >�2@��!"5?#��� !"# ,)8-F+8F-+-F/��� !"#�G!??#' 8)8*-:+9F(88/H!I#2?'	������	���J -)--8-+:(.:F/������K�	�����&#I#"7�$�%"&' 8)F:F.+:89F./$6#3#?!6$�?I1??#L#&&?#�=!??7C!2D%7M�2&6��2&��21"5@!?#	������	���J 8)F:F.+:89F./�N��K�	��	����O6%27&�"�$�%"&' +),+(-:.+8.:/P%D�@!A!D#' 8)+,:-*+F++9/Q?'R�1! 8)*8,.:+,,-(/E!1"1#2O#"1"�O%R3!&#2 8)+8*(.-+,(8/S#?R 	������	���J ,),F9+(+(8(8/T�N�������	����H!6 1! %R�$�%"&' 8)8(.*(-+9.F/$!&6?!R#&	������	���J 8)8(.*(-+9.F/UUU�V�A�D!?�W�I#2"R#"&�!��#!27�1"�R%?&1�?#�D�%"&1#7PV98Page 64 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	�������������	������������������ !"# $%&&'()*$+,'-����./.�0��1.02.31�""��4"35 2/����������� $%(6'$*7)7&'-	������	���8 $%)7)'7(),')-�9��
	��	�����:�"1�;��� !"# 6%('&+7(*($7-<.��4!/:�; $%),*)76'&**-<��4!.=>.23�!?.2!@��. $%$7'76$6),6-A#!@.! $%$)+*66&76+-B��C3�1CD ;�3 	������	���8 +%(,$''7,()7-�9������	�����:4";�!��� !"# $%+7+7)$&)(*-E�54�!���F�G���"�!=!@41�""?�2;4!/"�!H�2F4.�@A��2�33.A�;�!"I��@.!J�C.3@��.0��� 3.0 ��;�! $%++6')(*',6-K�3��4�D"%�L�:!M.C��N!4�!"�O!	������	���8 $%')'67'((+)-
PPP�Q�A�1���H�>.2!;.!"��RR.�23�4!�; �"4R�.�1� !"4.3<Q66Page 65 of 76



����������	
��	���� �	�������� �����	
���	��������	�������� ��!"#$%& '()*++*),)-)./0�$12�34 5(5-*5656'5)./0�$7308�00�9:�;%"$:"<33=�>93?@3A�9@#$$&?�13 5(','*BC+*+B.D�3%"$D"EE3$�?9F$�"$�/�EG�E�%"���� � 5(6565B'5-*).H�AA�9 	������	���I ,(C'),++C))'.

JJJ�K�L">�A�/"230$ 3$%��EE3�0?��$� #A%�EA3�>"#$%�3?MK',Page 66 of 76



�

�

����� �
Page 67 of 76



�

�

���������	
����������������	��������������������������������� ������!�����"��#����� ������!�����"������$! ����!���!�%�����!��&����'����$���(������)����!��� !����*�+#�������'�� ������!�����"��� #�������������!��� ��!������!�%�����!��&����'���,��#����#!���������� ����� ������!����!��� !�����$��������!'��!������-� ���.��"�����#���������!����#���� ������!�����"���"#����� ������������!�%�����!��&����'���*�&�� ����'��!��������*/��$��#��0(1,�!���%�����!��&����'�����#!��� �'����"��#��#�����'���$��#��0(1�!���!���+�����'���*�2$����%�����!��&����'�������! #��-��,��#����$!����'��#��������$���!��� !���������*3��$��#��0(1��#!���!����*� �

Page 68 of 76



 

 

 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7C    Mee�ng Date:  July 9, 2024 
 
Subject:  Prepared By:  M. Brown, Police Chief 
 

 

 

Summary:  The Police Department has iden�fied the need to purchase one (1) emergency 
response vehicle (replacing a vehicle removed from the fleet early due to mechanical issues). 
Ordinance No. 012-24 provided an addi�onal $73,000 to Fund 500 to reflect this modifica�on to 
the fleet. 

Consistent with the City’s Procurement Procedures Policies adopted by Resolu�on No. 036-22, as 
amended, staff determined that purchasing through a contract procured by the Arizona State 
Department of Administra�on (“ADA”) would provide the City with compe��ve pricing for these 
purchases. The City maintains an interlocal agreement with the ADA to permit the City to 
purchase goods that are procured by ADA (“Contract No. C115-22”). For this purchase the City’s 
Police Department iden�fied PFVT Motors, Inc., as an approved vendor via ADA Contract No. 
CTR059322 (“ADA Contract”). Staff reviewed the procurement process u�lized by ADA for the 
ADA Contract and confirmed the applicable procurement requirements were met and obtained 
all necessary documenta�on regarding procurement.  

On June 27, 2024, staff requested and received a quote of $49,450.00 (applicable tax not 
included) from PFVT Motors, Inc., for one (1) 2024 Ford Police Interceptor U�lity. The es�mated 
tax of 9.3% ($4,645.35) would be paid upon licensing the vehicles in Washington State. 

Further, staff have iden�fied addi�onal expenses associated with emergency response vehicles 
that are an�cipated a�er delivery of the vehicle and are necessary to prepare the vehicle for 
service. These expenses include licensing, the purchase/installa�on of emergency ligh�ng and 
equipment, and City logo decals. These items are all es�mated to cost $22,000 per vehicle 
dependent upon the vehicle ou�i�ng (within the $818,000 ER&R budget authority for patrol 
vehicle purchases). These items are not included in the ADA Contract. Staff have followed the 
City’s Procurement Policies for these items and have a current vendor contract. 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street Port Orchard, WA 98366 

cityhall@portorchardwa.gov | (360) 876-4407 
www.portorchardwa.gov 

Adop�on of a Resolu�on Approving the 
Purchase of Equipment for the 
Equipment Rental Revolving Fund 500 

Page 69 of 76

mailto:cityhall@portorchardwa.gov


Business Item 7C 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The City’s Procurement Policies require City Council authoriza�on for purchasing budgeted items 
that cost $35,0000 or more. On July 1, 2024, staff completed the Interlocal Agreement Purchase 
Checklist for PVFT Motors, Inc., and confirmed this purchase meets RCW 39.34.030 and the City’s 
Procurement Policies. 

Recommenda�on:  Staff recommend adop�ng a resolu�on, providing City Council approval of 
the purchase of a vehicle from PVFT Motors, Inc., under ADA Contract No. CTR059322. 

Rela�onship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Has this item been presented to Commitee/Work Study? If so, which one: No 

Mo�on for considera�on: “I move to adopt a Resolu�on providing City Council approval of the 
purchase of a vehicle from PVFT Motors, Inc., under ADA Contract No. CTR059322, and 
authorizing the Mayor to execute all necessary documents to effectuate the purchase.” 

Fiscal Impact: $54,095.35, including es�mated applicable sales tax. Ou�i�ng of the vehicle and 
miscellaneous expenses are included in the 2023-2024 Budget (500.10.594.2160). 

Licensing/emergency ligh�ng and equipment/logo decals (not included in this approval but 
listed as a component cost of the emergency response vehicles for transparency): Es�mated 
at $25,050.82, including tax.  

Alterna�ves: Do not approve and provide alterna�ve guidance. 

Atachments: Resolu�on  
  Exhibit A: Quote from PVFT Motors, Inc. 
  ILA Checklist 

  

 

 

 

Page 70 of 76



        
RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 
THE PURCHASE OF AN EMERGENCY RESPONSE VEHICLE FROM THE EQUIPMENT 
RENTAL REVOLVING FUND 500 AND DOCUMENTING PROCUREMENT 
PROCEDURES.  
  
WHEREAS, one (1) emergency response vehicle must be replaced in 2024 as part of the 

Equipment Rental and Revolving Fund 500 (ER&R) replacement process; and     
 
WHEREAS, the City has an interlocal agreement with Arizona State Department of 

Administration (ADA) (City Contract No. C115-22) which allows the City to utilize the contracts 
procured by ADA for services and purchases, so long as the City confirms the contract complies 
with all applicable statutory procurement requirements for the particular purchase or service, 
per RCW 39.34.030; and 

 
WHEREAS; consistent with City Contract No. C115-22 and the City’s Procurement 

Procedures Policies, adopted as Resolution No. 036-22, as amended, the City’s Police 
Department identified PFVT Motors, Inc., as an approved vendor for the emergency response 
vehicles, awarded via ADA Contract No. CTR059322 (ADA Contract); and 

 
WHEREAS, Staff reviewed the procurement process utilized by the ADA for the ADA 

Contract, confirmed the procurement requirements were met, and obtained all necessary 
documentation from DES and the vendor regarding procurement; and  
 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2024, staff requested and received a quote from PFVT Motors, 
Inc., of $49,450.00 (applicable tax not included) for one (1) 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Utility. 
The estimated tax of 9.3% ($4,645.35) will be paid upon licensing the vehicles in Washington 
State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 1, 2024, the City’s Police Department completed the Interlocal 
Agreement Purchase Checklist for the selected vendor and confirmed the quote was consistent 
with the ADA Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget includes $818,00 in Equipment Rental and 

Revolving Fund 500 (ER&R) for the purchase of emergency response vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Procurement Policies require City Council authorization for 

purchasing budgeted items that cost $35,000 or more and for unbudgeted purchases; and 
 
WHEREAS, the PFVT Motors, Inc., quote, attached as Exhibit A, is for the purchase of 

ER&R Equipment in an amount that exceeds the $35,000 authorization limit; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor's Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described herein 
for this purchase by Resolution; now, therefore, 

Page 71 of 76



Resolution No. ______ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
 THAT: The City Council approves the purchase from PFVT Motors, Inc., of one (1) Police 

Interceptor Utility vehicles in the amount of $49,450.00 (applicable tax not included). The 
Mayor or his designee is authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the 
purchase, consistent with this authorization. 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 

 hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 9th day of July 2024.   
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Page 72 of 76



Page 73 of 76



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
PURCHASES THROUGH INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS 

 

City Contract No.: 115-22 
Interlocal Agreement with the Host Agency (government agency or Purchasing Co-Op name):  
Arizona Department of Administration  
Item Description: ___Ford Police Interceptor Utility vehicles               
               
 

Do you have an Interlocal agreement signed with the Contract (host) Agency? 
☒  If yes, where is it filed:  Clerks Office 
☐  If no, get a mutually signed Agreement in place before you continue. 

 

ADA Contract No.#: Contract No. CTR059322    
If you have an Office of State Procurement (OSP) contract number you may skip the remainder of this test 
because the OSP contracts comply with remaining requirements and retain the documentation on hand for 
SAO to review in the OSP offices. 
 

Is this a technology contract?     
☐  If yes, do your own rules allow for technology contracts to be negotiated? 
☐  If your own rules allow for negotiated IT contracts, you can skip this test. 

 

Is this a services contract?     
☐  If yes, do your own rules allow services to be negotiated? 
☐  If your own rules allow for negotiated services, you can skip the remainder of the test. 
 

Are you using this as only one of multiple quotes, for a small purchase?     
☐  If yes, you can skip the remainder of the test.  Your purchase will not mandate the sealed bid rules. 
☐  If no, complete the remainder of the checklist. 
 

Checklist for Required Compliance 
Is the Host agency a public agency1?  ☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, what state laws apply to Host Agency: 

Arizona 
Does the host agency have a requirement 
to run a newspaper ad in their local paper 
and did they comply 

☒  Yes ☐ No See RFP on file. 

Did they list on the public agency’s 
website?  

☒  Yes ☐ No See RFP on file. 

Did the bid & award comply with the 
Host agency’s state procurement laws? 

☒  Yes ☐ No See documentation on file. 

 

 
1 RCW 39.34.020 (1), “public agency” means any agency, political subdivision, or unit of local government of this state including, but 
not limited to, municipal corporations, quasi municipal corporations, special purpose districts, and local service districts; any agency 
of the state government; any agency of the United States; any Indian tribe recognized as such by the federal government; and any 
political subdivision of another state 

Page 74 of 76



 
Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund 

Purchase Request Form 
RCW 43.19.648 – Requires all local governments to convert their vehicle fleets to electricity or 
biofuel. Local governments are required to transition all vehicles to electricity or biofuels to the 
extent practicable. WAC 194-29-030 provides further guidance regarding this issue. If it is not 
practical for local governments to use electricity or biofuel for police, fire or emergency response 
vehicles, including utility vehicles frequently used for emergency response, it is encouraged to 
consider alternate fuels and vehicle technologies to displace gasoline and diesel fuel use.  
 

Please attach the quote for vehicle / equipment. 
 

Description of item: 2024 Ford Police Interceptor Utility AWD  

Procurement method: City contract no 115-22 interlocal agreement with host agency – Arizona 
Department of Administration.  ADA Contract No CTR059322. City Contract No 17-23 – Systems for 
Public Safety. 

Department 
  Water              Sewer            Storm             Street      Public Works       DCD              Police             Admin 
      x  
 

Addition or Replacement 
 Addition to Fleet 

Replacement Vehicle / Equipment being replaced:  ER&R #1040 x 
 

Fleet Standardization 
x Requested Vehicle / Equipment follows fleet standardization  
 Requested Vehicle / Equipment DOES NOT follow Standardization.  List items that are 

not fleet standard and reason for addition. 
 
 
 

 

 Requested Vehicle / Equipment does not have a standard 
  

Cost 
$54,095.35 Fleet standard cost 

Additional cost for consideration: Build for patrol vehicle, license and registration 
TOTAL 

$22178.60 
$78973.40 

 
 

Page 75 of 76



 
 
 

STANDARDS FOR VEHICLES 
 
Police Department Standard Vehicle 

Model Chassis Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Ford Sedans Automatic Black City Decal Lights 

 
SUV 2WD 

 
Vehicle Number Radios 

  
4WD 

  
Antennas 

  
AWD 

   
 
Public Works and Planning Standard Truck 

Model Chassis Cab Size Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Ford 1/2 Ton Regular Automatic White City Logo Lights 

 
3/4 Ton Extended  2WD 

 
Truck Number Radios 

 
1 Ton Crew Cab 4WD 

  
Antennas 

      
Tool Boxes 

 
Administration and Planning Standard Vehicle 

Type Chassis Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Electric Sedans Automatic White City Logo Lights 

Biofuel SUV 2WD 
 

Vehicle Number Radios 

  
4WD 

  
Antennas 

  
AWD 

   
 
Reviewed by Mechanic: Name__________________________ Date_______________________________ 
 

I have reviewed the vehicles / equipment listed above and request approval for purchase. 
 
_____________________________ __July 3, 2024_____________ 
Department Director   Date 
 
Approved for purchase by: 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
ER&R Representative   Date 

Page 76 of 76


	4C 01 20240611 Minutes
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:01:17)
	4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 03:59)
	8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
	15. ADJOURNMENT


	7B 01 Staff Report 2024- Kroger Opioid(10892304.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	7B 02 Resolution - Authorizing Participation in Kroger Settlement - Opioid Litigation(10892320.1)
	7B 03 Kroger-Ex.-K-Subdivision-Participation-Form
	7B 04 Allocaton Agreement III
	Allocaton Agreement III.pdf
	20240628114323_001.pdf
	Allocaton Agreement III.pdf

	One Washington Memorandum of Understanding between the Washington Municipalities.pdf

	7C 01 Staff Report - Emergency Response Vehicle Purchase [3JUL24]
	Agenda Staff Report

	7C 02 Resolution - Emergency Response Vehicle Purchase [3JUL24]
	7C 03 PVFT Quote - signed [3JUL24]
	7C 04 Interlocal-GPO Agreement Checklist - Patrol Vehicle [3JUL24]
	7C 05 72024 - Replacement for Patrol vehicle purchase request form
	Binder1.pdf
	7A 01 SR- Ord Storm water implementation amendment(10892824.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	7A 02 Ordinance XXX-24 - Stormwater Clean-up(10889408.1)
	7A 03 POMC 13.06.100 - Redline for Ord.(10892826.1)

	July 9, 2024 City Council Agenda.pdf
	...

	agenda.pdf
	...


	Back to Agenda: 


